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Report Items 
 
Proposal 1                                Proposed by the board of directors 
Proposal: Business Reports for year 2022. 
Explanation: The 2022 Business Report is attached hereto as Attachment 1.  
 
Proposal 2                                Proposed by the board of directors 
Proposal: Audit Committee’s Review Report on Financial Statements for year 2022. 
Explanation:  
A. The 2022 Audit Committee’s Review Report on Financial Statements is attached 

hereto as Attachment 2.  
B. The main focus of the Audit Committee in 2022 and the communications among 

the Audit Committee, audit officers and CPAs are attached hereto as Attachment 
3. 

 
Proposal 3                                Proposed by the board of directors 
Proposal: Distribution of remuneration for employees and directors in 2022, and a  

report on the payment of director remuneration. 
Explanation:  
A. Based on Paragraph 2 of Article 36 of the Articles of Incorporation, distribution of 

compensation for employees and directors shall be determined by a resolution 
adopted by a majority vote at a board of directors meeting attended by two-thirds 
or more of the directors and be reported at a shareholders’ meeting.  

B. Based on Paragraph 1 of Article 36 of the Articles of Incorporation, for a profitable 
year, the Company shall set aside equivalent to or more than 0.01 % for employees’ 
compensation and equivalent to or less than 1% for directors’ compensation. For 
the soundness of the Company’s continuing operation, the Company's accumulated 
losses shall first be covered before distributing the compensation. And according to 
Paragraph 3 of Article 36, the Company shall deduct and set aside an amount equal 
to the cumulative losses (if any) from its profit before taxes before calculating 
employees’ and directors’ compensation. 
Distribution of compensation for employees and directors for year 2022: 
a. The Company set aside NTD2,000,000 for compensation for employees, 

0.012% of the profits following aforementioned calculation, and were 
distributed in cash. 

b. The Company set aside NTD36,000,000 for compensation for directors, 0.225% 
of the profits following aforementioned calculation. 

C. This proposal was approved at the 1st and 2nd meeting of the 4th Term 
Remuneration Committee and the 1st, 2nd, and 3rd meeting of the 7th Term Board 
of Directors in 2023. 

 

D. In accordance with Article 71-1 of the "Corporate Governance Guidelines" of the 
Company, the Company shall report the remuneration received by the directors at 
the shareholders' meeting, including the remuneration policy, the type, amount, 
and level of remuneration, and the relationship with the directors' performance 
evaluation results. The payment of directors' remuneration is attached hereto as 
Attachment 4. 

 

Ratification Items 
 
Proposal 1                                Proposed by the board of directors 
Proposal: Business Reports and Financial Statements for year 2022. 
Explanation:  
A. The 2022 Financial Statements of the Company, were audited by Wu, Mei-Hui 

CPA and Kuo, Cheng-Hung CPA, both of Deloitte & Touche, Taiwan who issued 

an unmodified opinion report. 
B. The aforementioned Business Reports and Financial Statements were approved 

at the 3rd meeting of the 7th Term Board of Directors in 2023 and examined by the 
Audit Committee. 

C. The 2022 Business Reports and Financial Statements are attached hereto as 
Attachment 1 and Attachment 5. 

Resolutions：： 
 
Proposal 2                                Proposed by the board of directors 
Proposal: Proposal for distribution of 2022 earnings. 
Explanation:  
A. The beginning retained earnings of the year 2022 was NTD13,165,892,706, and 

then it was adjusted by adding NTD20,195,440 on the disposal of investments in 
equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, 
adding NTD408,760,309 on the 2022 remeasurement of defined benefit plans, 
adding 2022 after-tax profit of NTD15,961,000,204, setting aside legal reserve of 
NTD1,638,995,595 and setting aside special reserve of NTD14,200,212,123, the 
distributable retained earnings became NTD13,716,640,941. 

B. Based on the Articles of Incorporation, proposal for distribution of 2022 earnings 
is as follows, 

a. Cash dividends of Common Stock: NTD7,280,258,789 (NTD0.6 per share) 
The amount of cash dividends per share shall be calculated and truncated to 
NTD1. The fractional amounts of dividends less than NTD1 are summed to 
be recognized as other income of the Company. 
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b. Stock dividends of Common Stock: NTD2,426,752,930 (NTD0.2 per share) 
c. Unappropriated retained earnings: NTD4,009,629,222. 

C. In the event the number of outstanding shares to be affected by, buyback of 
shares, conversion of preferred stocks to common stocks, disposal of shares by 

shareholders, etc., it is proposed that the Board of Directors be authorized to 
adjust the cash dividends and stock dividends to be distributed to each share. 

D. In accordance with Article 66-9 of the Income Tax Act, the net income and 
other comprehensive income of 2022 shall be applied first for the purpose of the 
distribution of earnings. 

E. The Company issued Class A preferred shares on May 15, 2009. Based on the 
Articles of Incorporation, dividends of class A preferred shares NTD998,120 
were recognized as interest expense of 2022. 

F. This proposal was approved at the 4th meeting of the 7th Term Board of Directors 
in 2023 and reviewed by the Audit Committee. 

G. The Distribution of 2022 earnings is attached hereto as Attachment 6. 
Resolutions：： 
 
 
Discussion and Election Items 
 
Proposal 1                                Proposed by the board of directors 
Proposal: Appropriation of 2022 undistributed earnings as capital through issuance of 

new shares 
Explanation: 
A. The company’s current paid-in capital is NTD121,437,646,480, with 12,143, 

764,648 shares in issuance (12,133,764,648 common shares and 10,000,000 
preferred shares). It is proposed that 242,675,293 new shares be issued on the 
amount of NTD2,426,752,930 from distributable profit of 2022. Paid-in capital after 
new shares issuance will be NTD123,864,399,410. 
a. Source of fund for the proposed increase of capital: Distribution profit of 

NTD2,426,752,930 for 2022. 242,675,293 new shares are to be issued with a 
par value of NTD10 per share.  

b. Purpose of the proposed increase of capital: The increased capital will be used 
to enhance scale of capital and strengthen financial structure.  

c. Conditions of the proposed increase of capital: 
(a) The right and obligation of the new shares to be issued will be the same as 

the existing common shares. 
(b) The new shares will be distributed to the eligible shareholders as registered 

in the shareholders roster at the rate of 20 shares per 1,000 shares. Within 

 

five days from the book closure, the shareholders may go to the shareholder 
services agent to combine their fractional shares to become one share, or 
the shareholders may be paid in cash for their fractional shares. The 
fractional shares will be accumulated and the Chairman is authorized to sell 
the fractional shares to identified individuals. 

(c) It is proposed that the Board of Directors be authorized to carry out 
appropriate actions in connection with the change of outstanding shares and 
stock dividend distribution rate, from buy back of the Company’s 
outstanding shares or any other reasons. 

B. Subject to regulatory approval, it is proposed the Board of Directors be authorized 
to decide the distributing date of the new shares or matters requested by 
regulators. 

Resolution: 
 

Proposal 2                                Proposed by the board of directors 
Proposal: Amendment to the Company’s “Articles of Incorporation.” 
Explanation:  
A. In line with Article 31 of the "Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for 

Financial Holding Companies", the number of independent directors has been 
revised from not less than one-fifth of the number of directors to one-third. Therefore, 
the second paragraph of Article 17 of the Company’s “Articles of Incorporation” is 
amended as “among the number of the directors prescribed in the preceding 
paragraph, the number of independent directors shall be no less than three (3) and 
also no less than one-third of the total number of the Directors.” 

B. The comparison table of amendments to the Company’s “Articles of Incorporation” 
and the amended version, are attached hereto as Attachment 7. 

Resolution: 
 

Proposal 3                                Proposed by the board of directors 
Proposal: Proposal moves for holding election of the Eighth Term of the Board of 

Directors (four general directors and three independent directors) of the 
Company. 

Explanation:  
A. The term of office of the Company’s directors has expired, so to strengthen 

corporate governance and meet practical needs, it is proposed to elect seven 
directors (including three independent directors) at the Annual Shareholders' 
Meeting for a three-year term of office from May 24, 2023 to May 23, 2026. 

B. The Company adopts a candidate nomination system for the election of directors, 
and the candidates for the Eighth Term of the Board of Directors were reviewed 
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and approved at the 4th meeting of the Seventh Term of the Board of Directors in 
2023. 

C. The list of director candidates of this election is attached hereto as Attachment 8.  
D. The election of directors shall be held in accordance with the Company’s 

“Procedures for Election of Directors”. 
Resolution: 
 

Proposal 4: Proposal moves for releasing directors of the Eighth Term of the Board of 
Directors from non-competition restrictions 

Explanation: 
A. Pursuant to Article 209 of the Company Act, director who does anything for himself 

or on behalf of another person that is within the scope of the company’s business, 

shall explain to the meeting of shareholders the essential contents of such an act 

and secure its approval. 
B. A director of the Company, if engaging in acts of participation in other business 

operations similar or identical to the Company’s scope of operation, shall, pursuant 
to Article 209 of the Company Act, request the Shareholders' Meeting to exempt 
the director from non-competition restrictions and to release the director from the 
requirement to disgorge his income from competitive activities.    

C. Please refer to Attachment 9 for the material information regarding the directors’ 

competitive acts to be released by the Company.  
Resolutions：： 
 

Questions and Motions 
 
Adjournment 

2022 Business Report of SinoPac Financial Holdings Co., Ltd 

2022 Outlook and Market Retrospective 
In 2022, we experienced the outbreak of war in Ukraine, China’s zero-COVID policy, soaring inflation, central 
banks worldwide aggressively raising interest rates, the US placing China under a chip ban, the 20th National 
Congress of the Communist Party of China, the British debt crisis, and the collapse of FTX sending shockwaves 
through the cryptocurrency world. In sum, 2022 could be said the most uncertain, most severe year since the 
Second World War. Regarding inflation, we saw that war and the pandemic caused supply shortages, ultra-loose 
monetary policy caused excess demand, and a serious supply-demand imbalance led to soaring prices. Altogether, 
this led to the most serious inflation crisis of the past 40 years. Although Taiwan’s inflation level was lower than 
those of other countries, CPI nonetheless reached a 14-year high of 3.59%. As for interest rate increases, in 2022, 
the Fed raised interest rates by 425 basis points, the ECB by 250 basis points, and the Central Bank of the Republic 
of China (Taiwan) by 62.5 basis points. In terms of the economic outlook, at the beginning of 2022, the IMF 
estimated that the global economy would grow by 4.9% for the year, but the actual result was just 3.4%. In the 
United States, the GDP growth dropped from 5.9% in 2021 to 2.1% and that of the eurozone dropped from 5.4% 
to 3.5%. In China, it dropped sharply from 8.4% to 3.0%, while in Taiwan, it more than halved, from 6.53% to 
2.45%. In the financial markets, S&P 500 and Taiwan stocks entered a bear market after hitting record highs of 
4,818 points and 18,619 points respectively at the beginning of the year, with drops of as much as 19% and 22% 
respectively. The global bond market has also experienced a marked downtrend as markets factored in an ever-
higher Fed terminal rate assumption. In total, in 2022, the market value of global listed companies saw some 
US$25 trillion vanish into thin air, while the bond market fell by US$9.6 trillion, a double downturn of a kind 
rarely seen in the last 150 years. 
 
Business Strategy and Performance of SinoPac Holdings 
Against the challenging macroeconomic environment, SinoPac Holdings continues to exercise the three major 
themes of “Supervision and Management,” “Strategic Leadership,” and “Realization of Synergy.” In 2022, the 
consolidated after-tax net profit reached NT$15.961 billion, the after-tax earnings per share was NT$1.40, and 
the return on equity was 10.08%, delivering a stellar performance. SinoPac Holdings’ business strategy for 2022 
to 2024 focuses on four major themes: digitalization, cross-border, integration, and sustainability. This effort has 
already shown concrete results in 2022: 
 
1. Accelerating digital transformation: SinoPac Holdings is committed to the digital spirit of Collaboration, 

Empathy, Embrace change, Data-driven, and Success-driven. This commitment is driving a reengineering 
of the key customer journey, including a full digitalization of the counter service journey. The proactive 
implementation of AI accelerates the automation and smartification of business processes, which will 
blossom and bear fruit in multiple fields, from marketing via pinpoint personalized recommendations to our 
customers to smart detection of credit card fraud. The above actions effectively improved the digital 
penetration rate and activity of customers. In addition, our efforts in sharing digital culture and cultivating 
talents culminated in our winning the Best of the Best in Human Resource Development Award at the Taiwan 
Academy of Banking and Finance’s 11th Taiwan Banking and Finance Best Practice Awards. 

 
2. Boosting overseas revenues and expanding our international presence: SinoPac Holdings continues to 

reinforce the business characteristics of our overseas locations, promoting overseas digital transformation, 
striving to meet the cross-border financial service needs of both businesses and high-net-worth customers, 
and actively cutting into local retail markets. Bank SinoPac (China) branches have continued to cooperate 
closely with Bank SinoPac Hong Kong and Macau branches to expand their business customer base, 
showing double-digit growth in lending scale. In Southeast Asia, Bank SinoPac’s Ho Chi Minh City Branch 
in Vietnam has continued to cultivate our corporate finance business, while also making every effort to 
develop local retail finance business. 

 
3. Providing integrated services to optimize customer experience: SinoPac Holdings’ goal is “One SinoPac,” 

and to this end, we strive to boost customers’ attachment to SinoPac through integrated services. Bank 

AAttttaacchhmmeenntt  11  
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and approved at the 4th meeting of the Seventh Term of the Board of Directors in 
2023. 

C. The list of director candidates of this election is attached hereto as Attachment 8.  
D. The election of directors shall be held in accordance with the Company’s 

“Procedures for Election of Directors”. 
Resolution: 
 

Proposal 4: Proposal moves for releasing directors of the Eighth Term of the Board of 
Directors from non-competition restrictions 

Explanation: 
A. Pursuant to Article 209 of the Company Act, director who does anything for himself 

or on behalf of another person that is within the scope of the company’s business, 

shall explain to the meeting of shareholders the essential contents of such an act 

and secure its approval. 
B. A director of the Company, if engaging in acts of participation in other business 

operations similar or identical to the Company’s scope of operation, shall, pursuant 
to Article 209 of the Company Act, request the Shareholders' Meeting to exempt 
the director from non-competition restrictions and to release the director from the 
requirement to disgorge his income from competitive activities.    

C. Please refer to Attachment 9 for the material information regarding the directors’ 

competitive acts to be released by the Company.  
Resolutions：： 
 

Questions and Motions 
 
Adjournment 

2022 Business Report of SinoPac Financial Holdings Co., Ltd 

2022 Outlook and Market Retrospective 
In 2022, we experienced the outbreak of war in Ukraine, China’s zero-COVID policy, soaring inflation, central 
banks worldwide aggressively raising interest rates, the US placing China under a chip ban, the 20th National 
Congress of the Communist Party of China, the British debt crisis, and the collapse of FTX sending shockwaves 
through the cryptocurrency world. In sum, 2022 could be said the most uncertain, most severe year since the 
Second World War. Regarding inflation, we saw that war and the pandemic caused supply shortages, ultra-loose 
monetary policy caused excess demand, and a serious supply-demand imbalance led to soaring prices. Altogether, 
this led to the most serious inflation crisis of the past 40 years. Although Taiwan’s inflation level was lower than 
those of other countries, CPI nonetheless reached a 14-year high of 3.59%. As for interest rate increases, in 2022, 
the Fed raised interest rates by 425 basis points, the ECB by 250 basis points, and the Central Bank of the Republic 
of China (Taiwan) by 62.5 basis points. In terms of the economic outlook, at the beginning of 2022, the IMF 
estimated that the global economy would grow by 4.9% for the year, but the actual result was just 3.4%. In the 
United States, the GDP growth dropped from 5.9% in 2021 to 2.1% and that of the eurozone dropped from 5.4% 
to 3.5%. In China, it dropped sharply from 8.4% to 3.0%, while in Taiwan, it more than halved, from 6.53% to 
2.45%. In the financial markets, S&P 500 and Taiwan stocks entered a bear market after hitting record highs of 
4,818 points and 18,619 points respectively at the beginning of the year, with drops of as much as 19% and 22% 
respectively. The global bond market has also experienced a marked downtrend as markets factored in an ever-
higher Fed terminal rate assumption. In total, in 2022, the market value of global listed companies saw some 
US$25 trillion vanish into thin air, while the bond market fell by US$9.6 trillion, a double downturn of a kind 
rarely seen in the last 150 years. 
 
Business Strategy and Performance of SinoPac Holdings 
Against the challenging macroeconomic environment, SinoPac Holdings continues to exercise the three major 
themes of “Supervision and Management,” “Strategic Leadership,” and “Realization of Synergy.” In 2022, the 
consolidated after-tax net profit reached NT$15.961 billion, the after-tax earnings per share was NT$1.40, and 
the return on equity was 10.08%, delivering a stellar performance. SinoPac Holdings’ business strategy for 2022 
to 2024 focuses on four major themes: digitalization, cross-border, integration, and sustainability. This effort has 
already shown concrete results in 2022: 
 
1. Accelerating digital transformation: SinoPac Holdings is committed to the digital spirit of Collaboration, 

Empathy, Embrace change, Data-driven, and Success-driven. This commitment is driving a reengineering 
of the key customer journey, including a full digitalization of the counter service journey. The proactive 
implementation of AI accelerates the automation and smartification of business processes, which will 
blossom and bear fruit in multiple fields, from marketing via pinpoint personalized recommendations to our 
customers to smart detection of credit card fraud. The above actions effectively improved the digital 
penetration rate and activity of customers. In addition, our efforts in sharing digital culture and cultivating 
talents culminated in our winning the Best of the Best in Human Resource Development Award at the Taiwan 
Academy of Banking and Finance’s 11th Taiwan Banking and Finance Best Practice Awards. 

 
2. Boosting overseas revenues and expanding our international presence: SinoPac Holdings continues to 

reinforce the business characteristics of our overseas locations, promoting overseas digital transformation, 
striving to meet the cross-border financial service needs of both businesses and high-net-worth customers, 
and actively cutting into local retail markets. Bank SinoPac (China) branches have continued to cooperate 
closely with Bank SinoPac Hong Kong and Macau branches to expand their business customer base, 
showing double-digit growth in lending scale. In Southeast Asia, Bank SinoPac’s Ho Chi Minh City Branch 
in Vietnam has continued to cultivate our corporate finance business, while also making every effort to 
develop local retail finance business. 

 
3. Providing integrated services to optimize customer experience: SinoPac Holdings’ goal is “One SinoPac,” 

and to this end, we strive to boost customers’ attachment to SinoPac through integrated services. Bank 
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SinoPac’s DAWHO digital accounts work together with SinoPac Securities’ DAWHOTOU digital accounts 
to create a digital financial ecosystem, deepening integration in four major aspects: account opening, assets, 
transactions, and customer management. This also provides comprehensive financial services, from 
consumption and investing, to saving, and flexible funds. To provide our valued customers with a better 
financial experience, Bank SinoPac and SinoPac Securities co-launched a dual-platform preferential service 
for VIP customers of the two companies to earn high praise. 
 

4. Exploring green opportunities and fulfilling sustainability commitments: SinoPac Holdings is committed to 
actively expanding the sustainable impacts through the core financial capabilities and moving towards net 
zero together with our customers. Bank SinoPac has long been deeply involved in the field of solar 
photovoltaic power, and our financing balance firmly places us as a leader in the industry. Bank SinoPac is 
the one and only financial services company that has received the Best Financial Service Provider Award in 
the Top Solar System Awards from the Bureau of Energy, Ministry of Economic Affairs, for seven 
consecutive years. Bank SinoPac continues to promote the development of renewable energy in Taiwan 
through innovative and diversified financial support. In 2022, Bank SinoPac involved in the field of 
geothermal power generation and energy storage financing, and introducing a trust mechanism to ensure the 
safety of private green power transactions. 
 

Management Strategy and Performance of Major Subsidiaries 
Bank SinoPac’s customer-centric business model fosters deep-rooted local service efforts. In 2022, our 
consolidated after-tax net profits reached a record high of NT$14.713 billion, the after-tax earnings per share was 
NT$1.63, and the return on equity was 10.47%. Bank SinoPac has also continued to expand our scale of assets, 
with an annual growth in consolidated assets of 10.78%. In response to the evolution of digital technology and 
market demand, Bank SinoPac’s DAWHO digital accounts provide on-demand, convenient, and secure financial 
services which have been widely praised by the market. At the end of 2022, the cumulative number of accounts 
opened exceeded 1.34 million, and DAWHO had also been recognized by the The Asset with the Best Mobile 
Banking Application award. Bank SinoPac continues to develop our AI trading model, strengthening quantitative 
investment and accelerating digital development. We also actively participate in a range of financial transactions 
in the Taiwanese and Asian financial markets, including foreign exchange, interest rate, and trading equity 
securities and their derivative financial products. Bank SinoPac’s trading platforms are well established, and Bank 
SinoPac was among the first members of Taiwan futures Exchange OTC Derivatives Clearing Business, and also 
a main conductor of inter-bank transactions in the Asia-Pacific region. In addition, Bank SinoPac actively builds 
defensive and structural growth portfolios, implementing risk diversification through diverse investment methods 
supplemented by dynamic hedging, thus establishing portfolios with stable, sustainable returns. 
 
SinoPac Securities, meanwhile, continues to innovate in finance and develop wealth management and digital 
finance businesses. In 2022, the after-tax net profit reached NT$1.582 billion, for EPS of NT$0.98 and return on 
equity of 5.08%. SinoPac Securities has seen fruitful results in pan-wealth management: ranked No. 2 for 
consecutive years in the sub-brokerage business market, the AUM in trust reached NT$32.779 billion, growing 
10.22% year on year and ranking No. 3 in the market, and the securities lending balance of NT$33.193 billion 
accounted for 112.11% of the securities firm’s latest audited net worth, ranking No. 3 in the industry. SinoPac 
Securities led the market and launched the securities third-party trust business, expanding the scope of wealth 
management service. Moreover, SinoPac Securities is committed to the core concept of providing seamless digital 
services, innovating and optimizing our digital platforms, and showcasing the achievements of our digital service. 
Our one-stop service for online opening of Taiwan stock securities account, sub-brokerage account, and SinoPac 
Inv. Service membership account; our whole new wealth management website that integrates investment and 
account management services; our DAWHOTOU App; and our SinoPac Stock Savings Plan for Taiwan and US 
stocks highlight our efforts to provide investors with more flexible and convenient digital financial services. 
SinoPac Securities is also developing in green digital finance. SinoPac Securities incorporated an “ESG zone” 
that provides ESG investment targets in the SinoPac Stock Savings Plan platform, and developed the Rich Club 
ESG website that promotes the concepts of sustainable investment. SinoPac Securities incorporates ESG 
sustainability values in of its digital transformation. SinoPac Securities’ robust development in digital finance is 
helping it realize its vision to be a prominent digital securities brand with exceptional wealth management services. 
 

SinoPac Leasing Corporation also continues to provide diverse specialist financial leasing services for customers 
in Taiwan, in China, and beyond, focusing on reinforcing small and medium-sized leasing business and actively 
developing a customer base around green energy and niche markets in various regions. SinoPac SITC actively 
develops ESG and interest-bearing products, and the scale of public placement fund managed increased by 5.79% 
at the end of 2022 compared with the previous year. SinoPac Venture Capital focuses on six major industries: 
smart manufacturing, biotechnology & healthcare, circular economy, greentech, AIoT, and fintech, and actively 
manages our investment portfolio to reduce investment risks. 
 
Strong Capital Structure and Stable Credit Rating 
SinoPac Holdings has a stable capital structure, with a capital adequacy rate at the end of 2022 of 121.52%; The 
consolidated capital adequacy ratio of Bank SinoPac as of the end of 2022 was 13.80%. Bank SinoPac’s asset 
quality remained excellent, with a non-performing loans ratio of 0.11%, which was 0.02% lower than that at the 
end of the previous year. On the whole, SinoPac Holdings’ credit rating outlook is stable, and the latest credit 
rating results are summarized as follows: 
 

Rating 
Category 

Credit Rating 
Company 

Long-term 
Rating 

Short-term 
Rating 

Rating 
Outlook Rating Date 

International 
Rating 

S&P Global Ratings BBB A-2 Stable August 30, 2022 
Fitch Ratings BBB+ F2 

Stable February 16, 2023 
Domestic 
Rating 

Fitch Ratings AA-(twn) F1+(twn) 

Taiwan Ratings twA+ twA-1 Stable August 30, 2022 

 
Actively Promoting Sustainability and Transition to Net Zero 
SinoPac Holdings has a long history of caring for Taiwan and exerting sustainable influence based on our four 
major sustainable development missions and policies: “Ethical Management, Wealth Management, 
Environmental Sustainability, and Social Prosperity.” These achievements have earned it kudos from throughout 
society. SinoPac Holdings was once again named a constituent stock of both the Dow Jones Sustainability World 
Index and Emerging Markets Index in 2022, and our MSCI ESG Rating was upgraded to a “Leader” class AA 
rating. We have also placed among the top 5% in the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporate Governance Evaluations 
for three consecutive years. Besides, SinoPac Holdings has also been honored with the Excellence in CSR Awards 
Top 100 from CommonWealth Magazine and the Taiwan Institute for Sustainable Energy’s (TAISE) 2022 Taiwan 
Corporate Sustainability Awards (TCSA) Top 100 Sustainable Corporation and Sustainability Report Platinum 
Awards. 
 
SinoPac Holdings has proactively responded to net zero. In response to global climate change and the 
international move toward net zero, the Board of Directors formally adopted the Net Zero 2050 Commitment, 
signed on to the Science-based Targets Initiative (SBTi), and submitted our carbon reduction goals. We also no 
longer undertake new project financing related to thermal coal and unconventional oil & gas and are working to 
gradually establish a more thorough carbon reduction policy. We also earned recognition in the form of the 
leadership rating of A- from the CDP (Carbon Disclosure Project) Climate Change Report evaluation for three 
consecutive years. Our subsidiaries are also competitively investing in the sustainable financial field. Bank 
SinoPac won the Best Bank for CSR in Taiwan 2022 from Asiamoney for two consecutive years. SinoPac 
Securities has actively developed its ESG bond underwriting business and was awarded the Sustainable 
Development Action Awards - Green Deal of the Year in Taiwan by International Business Magazine. 
 
SinoPac Holdings places great importance on responsible investment and due diligence in governance and 
received wide recognition. Our subsidiaries together won three awards in the second Taiwan Sustainable 
Investment Awards from the Taiwan Institute for Sustainable Energy. SinoPac Securities won the Excellent Award 
for Institutional influence in Securities Company for the first time. SinoPac SITC and SinoPac Inv. Service both 
won awards for two consecutive years, winning the Excellent Award for Institutional Influence in Investment 
Trust Group and the Silver Award for ESG Innovation in Institutional Influence Group respectively. 
 
SinoPac Holdings is committed to improving the climate awareness of our customers, the staff, and the public. 
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SinoPac’s DAWHO digital accounts work together with SinoPac Securities’ DAWHOTOU digital accounts 
to create a digital financial ecosystem, deepening integration in four major aspects: account opening, assets, 
transactions, and customer management. This also provides comprehensive financial services, from 
consumption and investing, to saving, and flexible funds. To provide our valued customers with a better 
financial experience, Bank SinoPac and SinoPac Securities co-launched a dual-platform preferential service 
for VIP customers of the two companies to earn high praise. 
 

4. Exploring green opportunities and fulfilling sustainability commitments: SinoPac Holdings is committed to 
actively expanding the sustainable impacts through the core financial capabilities and moving towards net 
zero together with our customers. Bank SinoPac has long been deeply involved in the field of solar 
photovoltaic power, and our financing balance firmly places us as a leader in the industry. Bank SinoPac is 
the one and only financial services company that has received the Best Financial Service Provider Award in 
the Top Solar System Awards from the Bureau of Energy, Ministry of Economic Affairs, for seven 
consecutive years. Bank SinoPac continues to promote the development of renewable energy in Taiwan 
through innovative and diversified financial support. In 2022, Bank SinoPac involved in the field of 
geothermal power generation and energy storage financing, and introducing a trust mechanism to ensure the 
safety of private green power transactions. 
 

Management Strategy and Performance of Major Subsidiaries 
Bank SinoPac’s customer-centric business model fosters deep-rooted local service efforts. In 2022, our 
consolidated after-tax net profits reached a record high of NT$14.713 billion, the after-tax earnings per share was 
NT$1.63, and the return on equity was 10.47%. Bank SinoPac has also continued to expand our scale of assets, 
with an annual growth in consolidated assets of 10.78%. In response to the evolution of digital technology and 
market demand, Bank SinoPac’s DAWHO digital accounts provide on-demand, convenient, and secure financial 
services which have been widely praised by the market. At the end of 2022, the cumulative number of accounts 
opened exceeded 1.34 million, and DAWHO had also been recognized by the The Asset with the Best Mobile 
Banking Application award. Bank SinoPac continues to develop our AI trading model, strengthening quantitative 
investment and accelerating digital development. We also actively participate in a range of financial transactions 
in the Taiwanese and Asian financial markets, including foreign exchange, interest rate, and trading equity 
securities and their derivative financial products. Bank SinoPac’s trading platforms are well established, and Bank 
SinoPac was among the first members of Taiwan futures Exchange OTC Derivatives Clearing Business, and also 
a main conductor of inter-bank transactions in the Asia-Pacific region. In addition, Bank SinoPac actively builds 
defensive and structural growth portfolios, implementing risk diversification through diverse investment methods 
supplemented by dynamic hedging, thus establishing portfolios with stable, sustainable returns. 
 
SinoPac Securities, meanwhile, continues to innovate in finance and develop wealth management and digital 
finance businesses. In 2022, the after-tax net profit reached NT$1.582 billion, for EPS of NT$0.98 and return on 
equity of 5.08%. SinoPac Securities has seen fruitful results in pan-wealth management: ranked No. 2 for 
consecutive years in the sub-brokerage business market, the AUM in trust reached NT$32.779 billion, growing 
10.22% year on year and ranking No. 3 in the market, and the securities lending balance of NT$33.193 billion 
accounted for 112.11% of the securities firm’s latest audited net worth, ranking No. 3 in the industry. SinoPac 
Securities led the market and launched the securities third-party trust business, expanding the scope of wealth 
management service. Moreover, SinoPac Securities is committed to the core concept of providing seamless digital 
services, innovating and optimizing our digital platforms, and showcasing the achievements of our digital service. 
Our one-stop service for online opening of Taiwan stock securities account, sub-brokerage account, and SinoPac 
Inv. Service membership account; our whole new wealth management website that integrates investment and 
account management services; our DAWHOTOU App; and our SinoPac Stock Savings Plan for Taiwan and US 
stocks highlight our efforts to provide investors with more flexible and convenient digital financial services. 
SinoPac Securities is also developing in green digital finance. SinoPac Securities incorporated an “ESG zone” 
that provides ESG investment targets in the SinoPac Stock Savings Plan platform, and developed the Rich Club 
ESG website that promotes the concepts of sustainable investment. SinoPac Securities incorporates ESG 
sustainability values in of its digital transformation. SinoPac Securities’ robust development in digital finance is 
helping it realize its vision to be a prominent digital securities brand with exceptional wealth management services. 
 

SinoPac Leasing Corporation also continues to provide diverse specialist financial leasing services for customers 
in Taiwan, in China, and beyond, focusing on reinforcing small and medium-sized leasing business and actively 
developing a customer base around green energy and niche markets in various regions. SinoPac SITC actively 
develops ESG and interest-bearing products, and the scale of public placement fund managed increased by 5.79% 
at the end of 2022 compared with the previous year. SinoPac Venture Capital focuses on six major industries: 
smart manufacturing, biotechnology & healthcare, circular economy, greentech, AIoT, and fintech, and actively 
manages our investment portfolio to reduce investment risks. 
 
Strong Capital Structure and Stable Credit Rating 
SinoPac Holdings has a stable capital structure, with a capital adequacy rate at the end of 2022 of 121.52%; The 
consolidated capital adequacy ratio of Bank SinoPac as of the end of 2022 was 13.80%. Bank SinoPac’s asset 
quality remained excellent, with a non-performing loans ratio of 0.11%, which was 0.02% lower than that at the 
end of the previous year. On the whole, SinoPac Holdings’ credit rating outlook is stable, and the latest credit 
rating results are summarized as follows: 
 

Rating 
Category 

Credit Rating 
Company 

Long-term 
Rating 

Short-term 
Rating 

Rating 
Outlook Rating Date 

International 
Rating 

S&P Global Ratings BBB A-2 Stable August 30, 2022 
Fitch Ratings BBB+ F2 

Stable February 16, 2023 
Domestic 
Rating 

Fitch Ratings AA-(twn) F1+(twn) 

Taiwan Ratings twA+ twA-1 Stable August 30, 2022 

 
Actively Promoting Sustainability and Transition to Net Zero 
SinoPac Holdings has a long history of caring for Taiwan and exerting sustainable influence based on our four 
major sustainable development missions and policies: “Ethical Management, Wealth Management, 
Environmental Sustainability, and Social Prosperity.” These achievements have earned it kudos from throughout 
society. SinoPac Holdings was once again named a constituent stock of both the Dow Jones Sustainability World 
Index and Emerging Markets Index in 2022, and our MSCI ESG Rating was upgraded to a “Leader” class AA 
rating. We have also placed among the top 5% in the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporate Governance Evaluations 
for three consecutive years. Besides, SinoPac Holdings has also been honored with the Excellence in CSR Awards 
Top 100 from CommonWealth Magazine and the Taiwan Institute for Sustainable Energy’s (TAISE) 2022 Taiwan 
Corporate Sustainability Awards (TCSA) Top 100 Sustainable Corporation and Sustainability Report Platinum 
Awards. 
 
SinoPac Holdings has proactively responded to net zero. In response to global climate change and the 
international move toward net zero, the Board of Directors formally adopted the Net Zero 2050 Commitment, 
signed on to the Science-based Targets Initiative (SBTi), and submitted our carbon reduction goals. We also no 
longer undertake new project financing related to thermal coal and unconventional oil & gas and are working to 
gradually establish a more thorough carbon reduction policy. We also earned recognition in the form of the 
leadership rating of A- from the CDP (Carbon Disclosure Project) Climate Change Report evaluation for three 
consecutive years. Our subsidiaries are also competitively investing in the sustainable financial field. Bank 
SinoPac won the Best Bank for CSR in Taiwan 2022 from Asiamoney for two consecutive years. SinoPac 
Securities has actively developed its ESG bond underwriting business and was awarded the Sustainable 
Development Action Awards - Green Deal of the Year in Taiwan by International Business Magazine. 
 
SinoPac Holdings places great importance on responsible investment and due diligence in governance and 
received wide recognition. Our subsidiaries together won three awards in the second Taiwan Sustainable 
Investment Awards from the Taiwan Institute for Sustainable Energy. SinoPac Securities won the Excellent Award 
for Institutional influence in Securities Company for the first time. SinoPac SITC and SinoPac Inv. Service both 
won awards for two consecutive years, winning the Excellent Award for Institutional Influence in Investment 
Trust Group and the Silver Award for ESG Innovation in Institutional Influence Group respectively. 
 
SinoPac Holdings is committed to improving the climate awareness of our customers, the staff, and the public. 
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We have advocated the concept of the “SinoPac Life Initiative” for four consecutive years, calling on our staff to 
practice caring for the Earth in their daily lives through doing just one “act of green” every day. The entirety of 
our Taiwan operating locations and the staff have also voluntary responded to the call for the Earth hour lights 
out event. Bank SinoPac and SinoPac Securities also jointly held a “Holiday for the Carbon God,” using this to 
encourage the public to integrate sustainability ideas into their daily lives through acoustic music performances 
and low-carbon fashion fairs. 
 
Awards and Honors for the Customer-First Business Philosophy 
SinoPac Holdings has made great strides in sustainable development, and our intentions in brand value, digital 
innovation, and various businesses are obvious to all. In 2022, we won more than 200 awards and honors at home 
and abroad, a new record high. The brand value of SinoPac Holdings is widely recognized, and we were honored 
with the Corporate Excellence Award in the 2022 Asia Pacific Enterprise Awards (APEA) from Enterprise Asia. 
Bank SinoPac has also received high praise in the form of recognition as one of the World’s Best Banks by Forbes 
for two consecutive years. SinoPac Securities was honored by Global Banking & Finance Review and Finance 
Derivative with the Brokerage Brand of the Year Awards in Taiwan 2022, and SinoPac Leasing Corporation was 
named an Excellent Company in 2022 by the Taipei Chamber of Commerce. 
 
As for digital innovation, confronted with the challenges of the pandemic, Bank SinoPac has provided zero-
contact online and offline integrated digital services through the “iBranch” platform. Our digital branch services 
and paperless green financial tellers won the Taiwan Academy of Banking and Finance’s Best Digital Finance 
award at the 11th Taiwan Banking and Finance Best Practice Awards, the Best Digital Branch Project award from 
The Asset magazine’s Triple A Digital Awards, bronze in the Best Management Innovation Awards in the Business 
Next magazine Future Commerce Awards, the Gold Award in Digital Business Optimization in the Commercial 
Times Digital Finance Awards, and the Digital Service Quality Award from Excellence magazine. Our industry-
leading video-based insurance services also saw us honored with the COVID Management Initiative of the Year 
in both the ABF Retail and Wholesale Banking Awards from Asian Banking & Finance. Our overseas mobile 
banking service “easy by Bank SinoPac” also won The Digital Banker’s Award for Outstanding Digital 
Transformation by a Transaction/Wholesale Bank in COVID-19 in the Global Transaction Banking Innovation 
Awards. Bank SinoPac was awarded Best Mobile Banking Application and Best Retail Payment Project in The 
Asset magazine’s Triple A Digital Awards, Most Innovative Use of Technology in Taiwan in the Country Awards 
2022 from FinanceAsia magazine, and Service Innovation of the Year in the ABF Retail Banking Awards 2022 
from Asian Banking & Finance. Bank SinoPac, together with SinoPac Securities, SinoPac Futures, and SinoPac 
Inv. Service, also won 22 awards including Outstanding Enterprise, Best Product, and Most Popular Brand in the 
19th National Brand Yushan Awards. 
 
On the high-end financial management and financial inclusion front, Bank SinoPac and SinoPac Securities jointly 
won first place in Best Smart Financial Management Award for Banks, third place in the Best Friendly for Elder 
Award for Banks, and Best Wealth Management Securities Award in the 16th Wealth Management Banks and 
Securities Firms Evaluation by Business Today. They also won ten honors including Best Wealth Management 
Team for Domestic Banks, Most Recommended Bank in Taiwan, Best Print Marketing for Domestic Banks, and 
Best Wealth Management in Securities Firms in the 2022 Wealth Magazine Taiwan Financial Awards. Bank 
SinoPac is actively promoting trust business and was honored the third place of the Employees Benefit Trust 
Award in the 1st Trust 2.0 Planning Evaluation by Financial Supervisory Commission. Besides, Bank SinoPac 
has also promoted financial services for migrant labor for many years and won the Inclusive Finance Promotion 
Award at the 11th Taiwan Banking and Finance Best Practice Awards and the Financial Inclusion Initiative of the 
Year in the ABF Retail Banking Awards 2022 from Asian Banking & Finance. SinoPac Securities created a new 
customer investment service model ecosystem through digital innovation, winning the Best Customer Experience 
Enterprise in the 2022 CSEA Customer Service Excellence Awards held by the Taiwan Contact Center 
Development Association in our first participation in the awards, also becoming the only securities firm to win. 
 
With regards to financial transactions, Bank SinoPac has performed well in foreign exchange transactions, not 
only winning three awards from internationally renowned institution Refinitiv, including being named in the Top 
5 Trading Volume, Top Asian NDF Entity, and Top Asian NDF Trader. Bank SinoPac was also named Champion 
by Taipei Exchange in the 2022 New Taiwan Dollar Interest Rate Swap Trading Platform Competition. SinoPac 

Securities won the Editors’ Triple Star in The Asset’s Triple A Private Capital Awards for the industry’s first equity 
swap electronic trading platform; It was also awarded the Best ETF Market Maker - Highly Commended in 
Taiwan by The Asset. Moreover, SinoPac Securities, SinoPac Futures, and Bank SinoPac jointly won four awards 
at the Taiwan Futures Exchange’s 8th Futures Diamond Awards, including the Futures Introducing Broker Trading 
Volume Award. 
 
2023 Outlook and Business Strategy 
Looking forward to 2023, inflation is expected to cool down in an orderly manner, central banks will stop raising 
interest rates, and the market outlook will begin to rebound. In Taiwan, external demand is being affected by the 
slowdown in the growth of the major economies and in terminal demand. In the first half of the year, dynamism 
in the export sector will be depressed, while in the second half of the year, with the completion of industrial 
destocking, the global economic outlook will begin to warm up and exports are expected to recover. Domestic 
demand has already benefited from post-pandemic recovery and the re-opening of the border, and the increase in 
Taiwanese people’s willingness to travel has driven consumption. It is estimated that the annual growth in 2023 
will be 2.12%. As for the pandemic, as China abandons its zero-COVID policy, COVID is becoming endemic 
and supply chain bottlenecks are likely to ease. Furthermore, responses to climate change are pressing, requiring 
governments and businesses to work together to focus on sustainability, formulate laws and regulations to achieve 
the goal of net zero, and transition to a green economy. 
 
SinoPac Holdings will continue to promote our medium and long-term strategies in 2023. With regards to 
accelerating digital transformation, in addition to customer acquisition from digital channels, our operations will 
continue to focus on improving the digital penetration rate and customer activity, improving profits by 
strengthening our customer bases. Moreover, we will keep strengthening our digital competitiveness through 
optimizing personalized recommendations through novel technology, driving the automation and smartification 
of operating processes. As for boosting overseas revenues and expanding our international presence, we will 
actively seize the business opportunities presented by the evolution of the international situation and the post-
pandemic reconstruction of the industrial chain, continuing to deepen cross-border services, build digital 
platforms with a strong sales team, and actively expand our local retail customer bases. In the aspect of providing 
integrated services and optimizing customer experience, we will continue to work toward “One SinoPac,” focus 
on optimizing customer cross-subsidiary account opening and asset integration services, and create new 
competitive advantages with comprehensive integrated services. As for exploring green opportunities and 
fulfilling sustainability commitments, we will continue to support the government’s sustainable finance policy, 
expand the scale of renewable energy financing, maintain our leading position in solar photovoltaic financing, 
and continue to use various financial instruments and innovative ideas to assist the industry’s transition to net 
zero. In addition, we plan to further improve our investment and financing exclusion policy for high-carbon 
emission industries and continue to move towards realizing our net zero commitment. 
 
In 2022, SinoPac Holdings announced our commitment to “Together, a better life.” This brand-new vision aims 
to connect everyday life with finance and give everyone the ability to keep pace with the times and practice 
happiness. Embracing the core SinoPac values of “Passion for Work, Continuous Learning, Accountability for 
Shared Success, Open Mindedness, and Creativity and Diversity,” the Board of Directors, management team, and 
all staff will continue to strive to fulfill the duties on enhancing value for our shareholders, living up to the 
expectations which you have placed in us. 
 
Chairman: Shi-kuan CHEN          
President: Stanley CHU       
Chief Accountant: Hsiang-yuan CHANG 
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We have advocated the concept of the “SinoPac Life Initiative” for four consecutive years, calling on our staff to 
practice caring for the Earth in their daily lives through doing just one “act of green” every day. The entirety of 
our Taiwan operating locations and the staff have also voluntary responded to the call for the Earth hour lights 
out event. Bank SinoPac and SinoPac Securities also jointly held a “Holiday for the Carbon God,” using this to 
encourage the public to integrate sustainability ideas into their daily lives through acoustic music performances 
and low-carbon fashion fairs. 
 
Awards and Honors for the Customer-First Business Philosophy 
SinoPac Holdings has made great strides in sustainable development, and our intentions in brand value, digital 
innovation, and various businesses are obvious to all. In 2022, we won more than 200 awards and honors at home 
and abroad, a new record high. The brand value of SinoPac Holdings is widely recognized, and we were honored 
with the Corporate Excellence Award in the 2022 Asia Pacific Enterprise Awards (APEA) from Enterprise Asia. 
Bank SinoPac has also received high praise in the form of recognition as one of the World’s Best Banks by Forbes 
for two consecutive years. SinoPac Securities was honored by Global Banking & Finance Review and Finance 
Derivative with the Brokerage Brand of the Year Awards in Taiwan 2022, and SinoPac Leasing Corporation was 
named an Excellent Company in 2022 by the Taipei Chamber of Commerce. 
 
As for digital innovation, confronted with the challenges of the pandemic, Bank SinoPac has provided zero-
contact online and offline integrated digital services through the “iBranch” platform. Our digital branch services 
and paperless green financial tellers won the Taiwan Academy of Banking and Finance’s Best Digital Finance 
award at the 11th Taiwan Banking and Finance Best Practice Awards, the Best Digital Branch Project award from 
The Asset magazine’s Triple A Digital Awards, bronze in the Best Management Innovation Awards in the Business 
Next magazine Future Commerce Awards, the Gold Award in Digital Business Optimization in the Commercial 
Times Digital Finance Awards, and the Digital Service Quality Award from Excellence magazine. Our industry-
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in both the ABF Retail and Wholesale Banking Awards from Asian Banking & Finance. Our overseas mobile 
banking service “easy by Bank SinoPac” also won The Digital Banker’s Award for Outstanding Digital 
Transformation by a Transaction/Wholesale Bank in COVID-19 in the Global Transaction Banking Innovation 
Awards. Bank SinoPac was awarded Best Mobile Banking Application and Best Retail Payment Project in The 
Asset magazine’s Triple A Digital Awards, Most Innovative Use of Technology in Taiwan in the Country Awards 
2022 from FinanceAsia magazine, and Service Innovation of the Year in the ABF Retail Banking Awards 2022 
from Asian Banking & Finance. Bank SinoPac, together with SinoPac Securities, SinoPac Futures, and SinoPac 
Inv. Service, also won 22 awards including Outstanding Enterprise, Best Product, and Most Popular Brand in the 
19th National Brand Yushan Awards. 
 
On the high-end financial management and financial inclusion front, Bank SinoPac and SinoPac Securities jointly 
won first place in Best Smart Financial Management Award for Banks, third place in the Best Friendly for Elder 
Award for Banks, and Best Wealth Management Securities Award in the 16th Wealth Management Banks and 
Securities Firms Evaluation by Business Today. They also won ten honors including Best Wealth Management 
Team for Domestic Banks, Most Recommended Bank in Taiwan, Best Print Marketing for Domestic Banks, and 
Best Wealth Management in Securities Firms in the 2022 Wealth Magazine Taiwan Financial Awards. Bank 
SinoPac is actively promoting trust business and was honored the third place of the Employees Benefit Trust 
Award in the 1st Trust 2.0 Planning Evaluation by Financial Supervisory Commission. Besides, Bank SinoPac 
has also promoted financial services for migrant labor for many years and won the Inclusive Finance Promotion 
Award at the 11th Taiwan Banking and Finance Best Practice Awards and the Financial Inclusion Initiative of the 
Year in the ABF Retail Banking Awards 2022 from Asian Banking & Finance. SinoPac Securities created a new 
customer investment service model ecosystem through digital innovation, winning the Best Customer Experience 
Enterprise in the 2022 CSEA Customer Service Excellence Awards held by the Taiwan Contact Center 
Development Association in our first participation in the awards, also becoming the only securities firm to win. 
 
With regards to financial transactions, Bank SinoPac has performed well in foreign exchange transactions, not 
only winning three awards from internationally renowned institution Refinitiv, including being named in the Top 
5 Trading Volume, Top Asian NDF Entity, and Top Asian NDF Trader. Bank SinoPac was also named Champion 
by Taipei Exchange in the 2022 New Taiwan Dollar Interest Rate Swap Trading Platform Competition. SinoPac 

Securities won the Editors’ Triple Star in The Asset’s Triple A Private Capital Awards for the industry’s first equity 
swap electronic trading platform; It was also awarded the Best ETF Market Maker - Highly Commended in 
Taiwan by The Asset. Moreover, SinoPac Securities, SinoPac Futures, and Bank SinoPac jointly won four awards 
at the Taiwan Futures Exchange’s 8th Futures Diamond Awards, including the Futures Introducing Broker Trading 
Volume Award. 
 
2023 Outlook and Business Strategy 
Looking forward to 2023, inflation is expected to cool down in an orderly manner, central banks will stop raising 
interest rates, and the market outlook will begin to rebound. In Taiwan, external demand is being affected by the 
slowdown in the growth of the major economies and in terminal demand. In the first half of the year, dynamism 
in the export sector will be depressed, while in the second half of the year, with the completion of industrial 
destocking, the global economic outlook will begin to warm up and exports are expected to recover. Domestic 
demand has already benefited from post-pandemic recovery and the re-opening of the border, and the increase in 
Taiwanese people’s willingness to travel has driven consumption. It is estimated that the annual growth in 2023 
will be 2.12%. As for the pandemic, as China abandons its zero-COVID policy, COVID is becoming endemic 
and supply chain bottlenecks are likely to ease. Furthermore, responses to climate change are pressing, requiring 
governments and businesses to work together to focus on sustainability, formulate laws and regulations to achieve 
the goal of net zero, and transition to a green economy. 
 
SinoPac Holdings will continue to promote our medium and long-term strategies in 2023. With regards to 
accelerating digital transformation, in addition to customer acquisition from digital channels, our operations will 
continue to focus on improving the digital penetration rate and customer activity, improving profits by 
strengthening our customer bases. Moreover, we will keep strengthening our digital competitiveness through 
optimizing personalized recommendations through novel technology, driving the automation and smartification 
of operating processes. As for boosting overseas revenues and expanding our international presence, we will 
actively seize the business opportunities presented by the evolution of the international situation and the post-
pandemic reconstruction of the industrial chain, continuing to deepen cross-border services, build digital 
platforms with a strong sales team, and actively expand our local retail customer bases. In the aspect of providing 
integrated services and optimizing customer experience, we will continue to work toward “One SinoPac,” focus 
on optimizing customer cross-subsidiary account opening and asset integration services, and create new 
competitive advantages with comprehensive integrated services. As for exploring green opportunities and 
fulfilling sustainability commitments, we will continue to support the government’s sustainable finance policy, 
expand the scale of renewable energy financing, maintain our leading position in solar photovoltaic financing, 
and continue to use various financial instruments and innovative ideas to assist the industry’s transition to net 
zero. In addition, we plan to further improve our investment and financing exclusion policy for high-carbon 
emission industries and continue to move towards realizing our net zero commitment. 
 
In 2022, SinoPac Holdings announced our commitment to “Together, a better life.” This brand-new vision aims 
to connect everyday life with finance and give everyone the ability to keep pace with the times and practice 
happiness. Embracing the core SinoPac values of “Passion for Work, Continuous Learning, Accountability for 
Shared Success, Open Mindedness, and Creativity and Diversity,” the Board of Directors, management team, and 
all staff will continue to strive to fulfill the duties on enhancing value for our shareholders, living up to the 
expectations which you have placed in us. 
 
Chairman: Shi-kuan CHEN          
President: Stanley CHU       
Chief Accountant: Hsiang-yuan CHANG 
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SinoPac Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. 
Audit Committee’s Review Report 

 
The Board of Directors has submitted the company’s 2022 consolidated financial 
statements audited by Mei-Hui Wu and Cheng-Hung Kuo, the Certificated Public 
Accountants of Deloitte & Touche, business report and statement of distribution of 
retained earnings to Audit Committee. After reviewing the abovementioned statements 
and reports, the Audit Committee has found them to meet the requirements of applicable 
laws and regulations. The Statements were thus approved by all members of the Audit 
Committee. Therefore, this Report is hereby prepared according to Article 14-4 of the 
Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Act and submitted for your 
approval. 
 
 
To  
2023 Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders 
 
                            SINOPAC FINANCIAL HOLDINGS CO., Ltd. 
       Audit Committee 
       Convener James J. SHEU 
       March 24, 2023 

AAttttaacchhmmeenntt  22  

 

SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited  

 

The main focus of the Audit Committee in 2022 and the communications among the Audit 
Committee, audit officers and CPAs 

 
The Audit Committee held 12 meetings throughout the year with the average actual attendance rate of each 
committee member being 100%, and the main focus of the committee’s work in 2022 is listed as follows: 
‧ Examine various documents prepared by the Board of Directors and submitted to the shareholders’ 

meeting (e.g., business report, financial statement, and earning distribution plan), and issue Audit 

Committee’s review reports in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. 

‧ Review annual and semi-annual financial statements. 

‧ Review and deliberate on the appointment and remuneration of CPAs. The Company appoints CPAs 

once a year and assesses the independence of CPAs based on a series of criteria, such as whether the 

CPA is a stakeholder of the Company, whether the CPA owns shares of the Company, whether the CPA 

holds any position at the Company, whether the CPA has faced disciplinary actions, and whether the 

CPA has not been replaced for seven years. 

‧ Review and deliberate on the Company’s internal audit plan. 

‧ Review and deliberate on the Company’s statement of internal control system. 

‧ Review the Company's proposal of cash capital increase and issuance of new shares. 

‧ Review the amendments to some provisions of the "Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets” 

of the Company. 

‧ Review and deliberate on amendments to the Company’s rules and regulations related to internal control 

system. 

‧ Review the proposal of donations. 

‧ Review the proposal of re-contract on the stock registration and transfer services contract. 

‧ Review audit reports submitted by the Audit Division, reports on the implementation of the legal 

compliance system submitted by the Legal & Compliance Department, reports on potential risks and 

management submitted by the Risk Management Division, and other special case reports.  
 

Communication between independent directors, audit officers, and CPAs 
(1) The internal audit officer shall present the audit report to the Audit Committee each quarter. In the 

first quarter of every year, the officer shall present the internal control efficacy evaluation for the 
previous year (submit the internal control statement) and present the audit items individually to the 
Audit Committee. At the end of each year, the officer shall present the annual audit plan 
individually and convene a meeting if necessary. 

(2) The Audit Committee shall meet with the CPAs at least six times each year. In addition to the audit 

AAttttaacchhmmeenntt  33  
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reports (annual report, semi-annual report), review report (quarterly report), and matters of advice, 
the meetings shall fully communicate significant accounting estimates and selection or changes in 
accounting principles and internal control audits in order stay fully appraised of  the Company's 
financial situation. The audit strategy and focuses shall be communicated to the CPAs individually 
before the reporting of the audit plan and opinions in the second and fourth quarters, in order to 
supervise the formulation of the Company's financial statements. From 2022 onwards, the 
Company’s interim financial statements shall first be approved by the Audit Committee before they 
are discussed and approved by the Board of Directors, with a view to strengthening the Audit 
Committee’s role in supervising the Company’s finances. 

(3) Summary of communication between independent directors and audit officers 
Date of 
Audit 
Committee 
Meeting 

Meeting Term Agenda Key Points of 
Communication 

Communication 
Results 

2022/3/7 
3rd meeting of the 3rd 
Audit Committee in 
2022 

The Audit Report of 
SinoPac Holdings 

The internal audit officer 
presented the audit report. 

Approved for future 
reference and 
subsequently reported to 
the Board of Directors. 

The Statement of 
Internal Control of 
SinoPac Holdings for 
2021. 

The internal audit officer 
reported the status of 
operation of the internal 
control system in 2021. 

Adopted as proposed 
and subsequently 
submitted to the Board 
of Directors for 
resolution. 

2022/5/10 
4th meeting of the 3rd 
Audit Committee in 
2022 

The Audit Report of 
SinoPac Holdings 

The internal audit officer 
presented the audit report. 

Approved for future 
reference and 
subsequently reported to 
the Board of Directors. 

2022/8/15 
8th meeting of the 3rd 
Audit Committee in 
2022 

The Audit Report of 
SinoPac Holdings 

The internal audit officer 
presented the audit report. 

Acknowledged and 
subsequently reported to 
the Board of Directors. 

2022/10/14 
10th meeting of the 3rd 
Audit Committee in 
2022 

The Audit Report of 
SinoPac Holdings 

The internal audit officer 
presented the audit report. 

Acknowledged and 
subsequently reported to 
the Board of Directors. 

2022/11/14 
11th meeting of the 3rd 
Audit Committee in 
2022 

Analysis report of the 
internal audit on the 
key points of 
information security 
inspection. 

Analysis report of the audit 
supervisor individual 
reports on the key points of 
information security 
inspection. 

Acknowledged. 

2022/12/16 
12th meeting of the 3rd 
Audit Committee in 
2022 

The Audit Report of 
SinoPac Holdings 

The internal audit officer 
presented the audit report. 

Acknowledged and 
subsequently reported to 
the Board of Directors. 

2023 Internal audit 
plan of SinoPac 
Holdings. 

The internal audit officer 
presented the internal audit 
plan of SinoPac Holdings 
for 2023 to the Audit 
Committee respectively. 
The key audit items and 
reviews of audit execution 
descriptions will be 
reviewed in accordance 
with the 2023 annual 
financial audit key points 

Adopted as proposed 
and subsequently 
submitted to the Board 
of Directors for 
resolution. 

Date of 
Audit 
Committee 
Meeting 

Meeting Term Agenda Key Points of 
Communication 

Communication 
Results 

announced by the 
competent authority, and 
the content of the audit plan 
will be adjusted 
accordingly. 

(4) Summary of communication between independent directors and CPAs 
Audit 
Committee 
Date 

Meeting Term Agenda Key Points of 
Communication 

Communication 
Results 

2022/3/7 3rd meeting of the 3rd 
Audit Committee in 
2022 

The consolidated 
financial statements 
of SinoPac Holdings 
and its subsidiaries 
for 2021 and the 
business report of 
SinoPac Holdings 
for 2021. 

The CPAs reported their 
audit work and opinions 
on the consolidated 
financial statements and 
business report. 

Adopted as proposed 
and subsequently 
submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 
resolution. 

The earnings 
distribution plan of 
SinoPac Holdings 
for 2021. 

The CPAs were present for 
queries. 

Adopted as proposed 
and subsequently 
submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 
resolution. 

2022/5/16 5th meeting of the 3rd 
Audit Committee in 
2022 

The consolidated 
financial statements 
of SinoPac Holdings 
and its subsidiaries 
for 2022 Q1. 

The CPA's presentation of 
the review results of the 
consolidated financial 
statements of the 
Company and its 
subsidiaries for Q1 2022. 

Adopted as proposed 
and subsequently 
submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 
resolution. 

2022/6/17 6th meeting of the 3rd 
Audit Committee in 
2022 

CPAs' opinions on 
financial statements 
and internal controls 
were reported to the 
Audit Committee 
respectively. 

The CPAs reported the 
audit plan for the 2022 
second quarter financial 
report and proposed their 
opinions on financial 
statements and internal 
controls. 

Acknowledged. 

2022/8/15 8th meeting of the 3rd 
Audit Committee in 
2022 

The consolidated 
financial statements 
of SinoPac Holdings 
and its subsidiaries 
for 2022 Q2. 

The CPAs reported their 
audit work and opinions 
on the consolidated 
financial statements and 
business report. 

Adopted as proposed 
and subsequently 
submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 
resolution. 

2022/11/14 11th meeting of the 
3rd Audit Committee 
in 2022 

The consolidated 
financial statements 
of SinoPac Holdings 
and its subsidiaries 
for 2022 Q3. 

The CPA’s presentation of 
the review results of the 
consolidated financial 
statements of the 
Company and its 
subsidiaries for 2022 Q3. 

Adopted as proposed 
and subsequently 
submitted to the 
Board of Directors for 
resolution. 

2022/12/16 12th meeting of the 
3rd Audit Committee 
in 2022 

CPAs' opinions on 
financial statements 
and internal controls 
were reported to the 
Audit Committee 

The CPAs reported the 
plan for the audit of 
SinoPac Holdings' 2022 
financial statements, Audit 
Quality Index Information 

Acknowledged. 
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Audit 
Committee 
Date 

Meeting Term Agenda Key Points of 
Communication 

Communication 
Results 

respectively. (AQI), Key Audit Matters 
of the Statement on 
Auditing Standards No. 
75, and put forward their 
opinions on the financial 
statements and internal 
controls. 

 
 

 

 
 

 
Remuneration and Compensation to Directors in 2022 

  

The Company and all consolidated entities’ total amount of remuneration paid to the Company's directors, and 
the analysis of the proportion of the after-tax net profit of only the parent company's financial statements in 
2022 are as follows: 

  

1. In 2022, the total remuneration paid by the Company to Directors (excluding remuneration to those who 
serve as employees) was NT$57,414 thousand and accounted for 0.36% of the net profit after tax of the 
Company. The remuneration (excluding remuneration to those who serve as employees) paid by 
companies in the consolidated financial statements (including SinoPac Holdings) was NT$87,249 
thousand and accounted for 0.55% of the net profit after tax of all companies. 

2. The Company's remuneration for Directors includes transportation and attendance allowances and 
remuneration. 
(1) The payments for transportation and attendance allowances shall be processed in accordance with 

the "Payment Guidelines for Transportation and Attendance Allowances for Directors, Supervisors, 
and Consultants" adopted by the Board of Directors. If the independent directors of the Company 
concurrently act as the members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee or Ethical 
Corporate Management Committee, attendance allowances will be paid in accordance with the 
respective committee charters, and no additional transportation allowance will be paid. The 
attendance allowances per attendance at the committee meetings shall be defined in the committee 
charters based on the independent directors' powers, risks, and time spent. 

(2) Article 36 of the Company's "Articles of Incorporation" provides that "In the event the Company 
makes a profit during the fiscal year it shall set aside no less than 0.01% of the profits for 
employee remuneration. The remuneration for Directors shall be no higher than 1%. However, the 
Company's accumulated losses shall have been covered. This Company shall distribute director 
compensation in cash. Employees compensation may be distributed in cash or in the form of 
shares. Employees eligible for compensation include employees of the Company and subsidiaries 
who meet the criteria set forth by the board of directors. The distribution ratio of compensation of 
directors and the distribution form and ratio of employees' compensation shall be approved by a 
resolution adopted by a majority vote at a meeting of board of directors attended by two-thirds of 
the total number of directors. In addition, a report of such distribution shall be submitted to the 
shareholders' meeting. When calculating employee and director remuneration, the profits of the 
current year (profits before tax deducted by pre-tax interest for distribution of remuneration to 
employees and directors) shall be deducted by accumulated deficit before calculating employee 
and director remuneration. The Articles of Incorporation have established the distribution standards 
and procedures for director remuneration and they link director remuneration to the Company's 
profitability and performance. The rate and amount of directors' remuneration for the current year 
would be based on the performance of directors, the financial and operational performance of the 
company, the implementation of corporate governance and ESG, and the reasonableness of the 
correlation of future risks, considering the industry standard with the peers, and should be 
considered and approved by the Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors and reported 
to the shareholders' meeting. 

(3) The remuneration for the Chairman of the Board shall be determined by the Remuneration 
Committee and the Board of Directors in accordance with prevailing rates of the industry. 

(4) Director remuneration of the Company shall be distributed in accordance with prevailing rates of 
the industry based on individual participation and contribution to the Company's operations, the 
Company's overall operations and forecast, and risk factors that have already occurred. 

(5) The "Regulations Governing the Evaluation of the Performance of the Board of Directors" were 
established by the Company on June 22, 2018 to evaluate the performance of the Board of 
Directors every year. The results of individual Directors' performance evaluation will be used as 
the basis for determining their individual remuneration. 
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Audit 
Committee 
Date 

Meeting Term Agenda Key Points of 
Communication 

Communication 
Results 

respectively. (AQI), Key Audit Matters 
of the Statement on 
Auditing Standards No. 
75, and put forward their 
opinions on the financial 
statements and internal 
controls. 

 
 

 

 
 

 
Remuneration and Compensation to Directors in 2022 

  

The Company and all consolidated entities’ total amount of remuneration paid to the Company's directors, and 
the analysis of the proportion of the after-tax net profit of only the parent company's financial statements in 
2022 are as follows: 

  

1. In 2022, the total remuneration paid by the Company to Directors (excluding remuneration to those who 
serve as employees) was NT$57,414 thousand and accounted for 0.36% of the net profit after tax of the 
Company. The remuneration (excluding remuneration to those who serve as employees) paid by 
companies in the consolidated financial statements (including SinoPac Holdings) was NT$87,249 
thousand and accounted for 0.55% of the net profit after tax of all companies. 

2. The Company's remuneration for Directors includes transportation and attendance allowances and 
remuneration. 
(1) The payments for transportation and attendance allowances shall be processed in accordance with 

the "Payment Guidelines for Transportation and Attendance Allowances for Directors, Supervisors, 
and Consultants" adopted by the Board of Directors. If the independent directors of the Company 
concurrently act as the members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee or Ethical 
Corporate Management Committee, attendance allowances will be paid in accordance with the 
respective committee charters, and no additional transportation allowance will be paid. The 
attendance allowances per attendance at the committee meetings shall be defined in the committee 
charters based on the independent directors' powers, risks, and time spent. 

(2) Article 36 of the Company's "Articles of Incorporation" provides that "In the event the Company 
makes a profit during the fiscal year it shall set aside no less than 0.01% of the profits for 
employee remuneration. The remuneration for Directors shall be no higher than 1%. However, the 
Company's accumulated losses shall have been covered. This Company shall distribute director 
compensation in cash. Employees compensation may be distributed in cash or in the form of 
shares. Employees eligible for compensation include employees of the Company and subsidiaries 
who meet the criteria set forth by the board of directors. The distribution ratio of compensation of 
directors and the distribution form and ratio of employees' compensation shall be approved by a 
resolution adopted by a majority vote at a meeting of board of directors attended by two-thirds of 
the total number of directors. In addition, a report of such distribution shall be submitted to the 
shareholders' meeting. When calculating employee and director remuneration, the profits of the 
current year (profits before tax deducted by pre-tax interest for distribution of remuneration to 
employees and directors) shall be deducted by accumulated deficit before calculating employee 
and director remuneration. The Articles of Incorporation have established the distribution standards 
and procedures for director remuneration and they link director remuneration to the Company's 
profitability and performance. The rate and amount of directors' remuneration for the current year 
would be based on the performance of directors, the financial and operational performance of the 
company, the implementation of corporate governance and ESG, and the reasonableness of the 
correlation of future risks, considering the industry standard with the peers, and should be 
considered and approved by the Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors and reported 
to the shareholders' meeting. 

(3) The remuneration for the Chairman of the Board shall be determined by the Remuneration 
Committee and the Board of Directors in accordance with prevailing rates of the industry. 

(4) Director remuneration of the Company shall be distributed in accordance with prevailing rates of 
the industry based on individual participation and contribution to the Company's operations, the 
Company's overall operations and forecast, and risk factors that have already occurred. 

(5) The "Regulations Governing the Evaluation of the Performance of the Board of Directors" were 
established by the Company on June 22, 2018 to evaluate the performance of the Board of 
Directors every year. The results of individual Directors' performance evaluation will be used as 
the basis for determining their individual remuneration. 
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(6) According to Article 5 of SinoPac Holdings' Rules Governing the Scope of Powers of Independent 
Directors, "The remuneration, compensation and service fees of the independent directors of the 
Company shall be collected in accordance with Articles 28-1 and 36 of the Company's Articles of 
Incorporation and the "Payment Guidelines for Transportation and Attendance Allowances for 
Directors, Supervisors, and Consultants," and may be different from those paid to regular directors 
as appropriate." As independent directors have more powers, risks and time spent than regular 
directors, independent directors shall be entitled to reasonable annual remunerations, in addition to 
attendance allowances for functional committee meetings, in the case of low profitability. In 
addition to supervising and giving independent opinions, independent directors are expected to 
provide strategic guidance and improve business performance together with other Board members. 
In case of high profitability, independent directors' remuneration link to their performance as 
regular directors. Over the past two years, SinoPac Holdings posted high profitability and did not 
define separate standards for independent directors' remunerations. Independent directors received 
the same remunerations as regular directors. 

 
Remuneration and Compensation to Directors in 2022 

Unit : NT$ thousand 

 
 
 

Position 

 
 
 

Name 

Remuneration  
The Aggregate of 

A, B, C, and D 
and The 

Aggregate of A, B, 
C, and D as 

Percentage of Net 
Income (Note 3) 

Relevant Remuneration Received by Who are also 
Employees 

 
The Aggregate 
of A, B, C, D, E, 

F, and G and 
The Aggregate 
of A, B, C, D, E, 

F, and G as 
Percentage of 

Net Income 
(Note 3) 

Any 
Other 

Compe
nsation
s from 
Other 

Investe
es or 

Parent 
Compa

ny 

 

Base 

Compensation  
(A) 

 
Retirement 

and 
Resignation 

(B) 

 

Directors' 

Compensation 

(C)  
(Note 1) 

 
Business-
conducting 

Expenses (D) 

Salaries, 
Bonuses and 

Special 
Allowances 

(E) 

 
Retirement 

and 
Resignation 

(F) 

 
Employees' Compensation 

(G) 

The  
Compan

y 

All 
Consoli
dated 

Entities 

The  
Comp
any 

All 
Consoli
dated 

Entities 

The  
Compa

ny 

All 
Consol
idated 
Entitie

s 

The  
Compa

ny 

All 
Consoli
dated 

Entities 

The  
Compan

y 

All 
Consolid

ated 
Entities 

The  
Compa

ny 

All 
Consol
idated 
Entities 

The  
Comp
any 

All 
Consoli
dated 

Entities 

The  
Company 

All 
Consolidated 

Entities 
The  

Compa
ny 

All 
Consoli
dated 

Entities 
Cash 
Divide

nds 

Stock 
Divide

nds 

Cash 
Dividen

ds 

Stock 
Dividen

ds 

Direct
or 

Chairman 
Hsinex 

International 

Corp./  
Shi-kuan CHEN 

14,500 26,767 0 
(Note 4  

8 
(Note 5) 24,000 36,264 

4,529 
 

(includi
ng 

vehicle 
and gas 
expense

s 
1,027) 

7,782 
 

(includi
ng 

vehicle 
and gas 
expense

s 
2,037) 

43,029 / 
0.27% 

 

70,822 / 
0.44% 

 
27,331 27,417 

108 
(Note  

4) 

108 
(Note 

5) 
0 0 0 0 70,468 /  

0.44% 
98,347 / 
0.62% None 

Director 
Hsinex 

International 

Corp./  
Stanley CHU 

Director 
Xing Yuan Co., 

Ltd. /  
Chi-hsing YEH 

Director 
Xing Yuan Co., 

Ltd. /  
Wei-thyr TSAO 

Indep
ende

nt 
Direct

or 

Independen
t Director Chi SCHIVE  

0 0 0 0 12,000 13,500 2,385 2,927 14,385 / 
0.09% 

16,427 / 
0.10% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14,385 / 

0.09% 
16,427 / 
0.10% None 

Independen
t Director 

James J. SHEU  

Independen
t Director 

Wei-ta PAN  

 
Remuneration Range Table 
 

Targets  

Name of Directors  

The Aggregate of A, B, C, and D  The Aggregate of A, B, C, D, E, F and G  

The Company  

(Note 6)  

All Consolidated Entities (Note 7) 

H  

The Company  

(Note 6)  

All Consolidated Entities (Note 7) 

 I  

Under NT$ 1,000,000  
Stanley CHU、Chi-hsing 
YEH、Wei-thyr TSAO Chi-hsing YEH Chi-hsing YEH、Wei-thyr 

TSAO Chi-hsing YEH 

NT$1,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$2,000,000 

(exclusive)  
    

NT$2,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$3,500,000 

(exclusive)  
    

NT$3,500,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$5,000,000 

(exclusive)  

Chi SCHIVE 、James J. 
SHEU、Wei-ta PAN James J. SHEU、Wei-ta PAN James J. SHEU、Wei-ta 

PAN、Chi SCHIVE James J. SHEU、Wei-ta PAN 

 
 

NT$5,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$10,000,000 

(exclusive)  
Xing Yuan Co., Ltd. Stanley CHU、Chi SCHIVE 、

Xing Yuan Co., Ltd. Xing Yuan Co., Ltd. Chi SCHIVE 、Xing Yuan Co., 
Ltd. 

NT$10,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$15,000,000 

(exclusive)  
    

NT$15,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$30,000,000 

(exclusive)  

Shi-kuan CHEN、Hsinex 
International Corp. 

Shi-kuan CHEN、Wei-thyr 
TSAO、 Hsinex International 
Corp. 

Shi-kuan CHEN、Stanley 
CHU、Hsinex International 
Corp. 

Shi-kuan CHEN、Wei-thyr 
TSAO、Hsinex International 
Corp. 

NT$30,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$50,000,000 

(exclusive)  
   Stanley CHU 

NT$50,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$100,000,000 

(exclusive)  
    

Over NT$100,000,000      

Total  9 9 9 9 

 
Note 1: Refer to the amount of compensation to be distributed to directors as approved by the Board of Directors in the most recent year. 
Note 2: A total of NT$ 2,467 thousand in wages were paid to drivers. 
Note 3: Net income means after-tax income in 2022. 
Note 4: SinoPac Holdings paid a total of NT$108 thousand in compensation for retirement and resignation, which is the amount contributed by SinoPac Holdings, to directors who are concurrently employees 

of the Company.  
Note 5: All the consolidated entities stated in the consolidated financial statements paid a total of NT$116 thousand in compensation for retirement and resignation, which is the amount contributed by these 

entities, to directors who are concurrently employees of these entities. 
Note 6: The name of directors to whom the total remuneration is paid by SinoPac Holdings shall be disclosed in the corresponding remuneration range.  
Note 7: The name of directors to whom the total remuneration is paid by all the consolidated entities (including SinoPac Holdings) listed in the consolidated financial statements shall be disclosed in the 

corresponding remuneration range.  
Note 8: The remuneration disclosed in the Remuneration Range Table is different from income as defined in the Income Tax Act. This table is therefore provided for disclosure only and is not used for 

taxation purposes.      
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(6) According to Article 5 of SinoPac Holdings' Rules Governing the Scope of Powers of Independent 
Directors, "The remuneration, compensation and service fees of the independent directors of the 
Company shall be collected in accordance with Articles 28-1 and 36 of the Company's Articles of 
Incorporation and the "Payment Guidelines for Transportation and Attendance Allowances for 
Directors, Supervisors, and Consultants," and may be different from those paid to regular directors 
as appropriate." As independent directors have more powers, risks and time spent than regular 
directors, independent directors shall be entitled to reasonable annual remunerations, in addition to 
attendance allowances for functional committee meetings, in the case of low profitability. In 
addition to supervising and giving independent opinions, independent directors are expected to 
provide strategic guidance and improve business performance together with other Board members. 
In case of high profitability, independent directors' remuneration link to their performance as 
regular directors. Over the past two years, SinoPac Holdings posted high profitability and did not 
define separate standards for independent directors' remunerations. Independent directors received 
the same remunerations as regular directors. 

 
Remuneration and Compensation to Directors in 2022 

Unit : NT$ thousand 

 
 
 

Position 

 
 
 

Name 

Remuneration  
The Aggregate of 

A, B, C, and D 
and The 

Aggregate of A, B, 
C, and D as 

Percentage of Net 
Income (Note 3) 

Relevant Remuneration Received by Who are also 
Employees 

 
The Aggregate 
of A, B, C, D, E, 

F, and G and 
The Aggregate 
of A, B, C, D, E, 

F, and G as 
Percentage of 

Net Income 
(Note 3) 

Any 
Other 

Compe
nsation
s from 
Other 

Investe
es or 

Parent 
Compa

ny 

 

Base 

Compensation  
(A) 

 
Retirement 

and 
Resignation 

(B) 

 

Directors' 

Compensation 

(C)  
(Note 1) 

 
Business-
conducting 

Expenses (D) 

Salaries, 
Bonuses and 

Special 
Allowances 

(E) 

 
Retirement 

and 
Resignation 

(F) 

 
Employees' Compensation 

(G) 

The  
Compan

y 

All 
Consoli
dated 

Entities 

The  
Comp
any 

All 
Consoli
dated 

Entities 

The  
Compa

ny 

All 
Consol
idated 
Entitie

s 

The  
Compa

ny 

All 
Consoli
dated 

Entities 

The  
Compan

y 

All 
Consolid

ated 
Entities 

The  
Compa

ny 

All 
Consol
idated 
Entities 

The  
Comp
any 

All 
Consoli
dated 

Entities 

The  
Company 

All 
Consolidated 

Entities 
The  

Compa
ny 

All 
Consoli
dated 

Entities 
Cash 
Divide

nds 

Stock 
Divide

nds 

Cash 
Dividen

ds 

Stock 
Dividen

ds 

Direct
or 

Chairman 
Hsinex 

International 

Corp./  
Shi-kuan CHEN 

14,500 26,767 0 
(Note 4  

8 
(Note 5) 24,000 36,264 

4,529 
 

(includi
ng 

vehicle 
and gas 
expense

s 
1,027) 

7,782 
 

(includi
ng 

vehicle 
and gas 
expense

s 
2,037) 

43,029 / 
0.27% 

 

70,822 / 
0.44% 

 
27,331 27,417 

108 
(Note  

4) 

108 
(Note 

5) 
0 0 0 0 70,468 /  

0.44% 
98,347 / 
0.62% None 

Director 
Hsinex 

International 

Corp./  
Stanley CHU 

Director 
Xing Yuan Co., 

Ltd. /  
Chi-hsing YEH 

Director 
Xing Yuan Co., 

Ltd. /  
Wei-thyr TSAO 

Indep
ende

nt 
Direct

or 

Independen
t Director Chi SCHIVE  

0 0 0 0 12,000 13,500 2,385 2,927 14,385 / 
0.09% 

16,427 / 
0.10% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14,385 / 

0.09% 
16,427 / 
0.10% None 

Independen
t Director 

James J. SHEU  

Independen
t Director 

Wei-ta PAN  

 
Remuneration Range Table 
 

Targets  

Name of Directors  

The Aggregate of A, B, C, and D  The Aggregate of A, B, C, D, E, F and G  

The Company  

(Note 6)  

All Consolidated Entities (Note 7) 

H  

The Company  

(Note 6)  

All Consolidated Entities (Note 7) 

 I  

Under NT$ 1,000,000  
Stanley CHU、Chi-hsing 
YEH、Wei-thyr TSAO Chi-hsing YEH Chi-hsing YEH、Wei-thyr 

TSAO Chi-hsing YEH 

NT$1,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$2,000,000 

(exclusive)  
    

NT$2,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$3,500,000 

(exclusive)  
    

NT$3,500,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$5,000,000 

(exclusive)  

Chi SCHIVE 、James J. 
SHEU、Wei-ta PAN James J. SHEU、Wei-ta PAN James J. SHEU、Wei-ta 

PAN、Chi SCHIVE James J. SHEU、Wei-ta PAN 

 
 

NT$5,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$10,000,000 

(exclusive)  
Xing Yuan Co., Ltd. Stanley CHU、Chi SCHIVE 、

Xing Yuan Co., Ltd. Xing Yuan Co., Ltd. Chi SCHIVE 、Xing Yuan Co., 
Ltd. 

NT$10,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$15,000,000 

(exclusive)  
    

NT$15,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$30,000,000 

(exclusive)  

Shi-kuan CHEN、Hsinex 
International Corp. 

Shi-kuan CHEN、Wei-thyr 
TSAO、 Hsinex International 
Corp. 

Shi-kuan CHEN、Stanley 
CHU、Hsinex International 
Corp. 

Shi-kuan CHEN、Wei-thyr 
TSAO、Hsinex International 
Corp. 

NT$30,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$50,000,000 

(exclusive)  
   Stanley CHU 

NT$50,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$100,000,000 

(exclusive)  
    

Over NT$100,000,000      

Total  9 9 9 9 

 
Note 1: Refer to the amount of compensation to be distributed to directors as approved by the Board of Directors in the most recent year. 
Note 2: A total of NT$ 2,467 thousand in wages were paid to drivers. 
Note 3: Net income means after-tax income in 2022. 
Note 4: SinoPac Holdings paid a total of NT$108 thousand in compensation for retirement and resignation, which is the amount contributed by SinoPac Holdings, to directors who are concurrently employees 

of the Company.  
Note 5: All the consolidated entities stated in the consolidated financial statements paid a total of NT$116 thousand in compensation for retirement and resignation, which is the amount contributed by these 

entities, to directors who are concurrently employees of these entities. 
Note 6: The name of directors to whom the total remuneration is paid by SinoPac Holdings shall be disclosed in the corresponding remuneration range.  
Note 7: The name of directors to whom the total remuneration is paid by all the consolidated entities (including SinoPac Holdings) listed in the consolidated financial statements shall be disclosed in the 

corresponding remuneration range.  
Note 8: The remuneration disclosed in the Remuneration Range Table is different from income as defined in the Income Tax Act. This table is therefore provided for disclosure only and is not used for 

taxation purposes.      
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
 
 
The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of SinoPac Financial 
Holdings Company Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Group), which 
comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years 
then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and 
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in 
conformity with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Financial 
Holding Companies, Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Public Banks, 
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms, Regulations 
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants, Regulations 
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, the guidelines issued by the 
competent authority, and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International 
Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) 
endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of 
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the 
Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Group in accordance with The Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified 
Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. 
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The key audit matter of the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 
31, 2022 is stated as follows: 
 
Estimated Impairment of Discounts and Loans 
 
The management assesses, estimates and recognizes impairment of discounts and loans collectively 
at the higher amount determined according to the Regulations Governing the Procedures for 
Banking Institutions to Evaluate Assets and Deal with Non-performing/Non-accrual Loans (“the 
Procedures”) endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC) and according to 
International Financial Reporting Standard 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”). According to the 
Procedures, the management estimates impairment of discounts and loans based on the overdue 
loans classified by loan term and situation of pledged collateral. According to IFRS 9, impairment 
of discounts and loans is estimated based on assumptions of probability of default and loss given 
default based on historical experience, current market situation and forward-looking information. 
Assessment of evidence of probable default and credit impairment, whether the credit risk has 
increased significantly since the original recognition (including the adoption of forward-looking 
factors), and the assessment of the methodology and assumptions used for estimating impairment 
and the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows require critical judgments and 
estimates. The estimated provision for impairment of discounts and loans calculated according to 
either the Procedures or IFRS 9 has a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. 
Therefore, the estimation of impairment of discounts and loans is identified as a key audit matter 
for the year ended December 31, 2022. 
 
Refer to Notes 4, 5 and 50 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the relevant 
accounting policies, judgments for estimations, estimation uncertainty and other related disclosures 
of the estimated impairment of discounts and loans. 
 
Our key audit procedures performed in respect of the above area included the following: 
 
We understood and assessed management’s impairment assessment practices, accounting policies 
and related internal control procedures for discounts and loans and evaluated whether the 
classification of loan assets complied with the Procedures. In addition, we evaluated whether 
overdue loans, situation of pledged collateral, and the provision for impairment of discounts and 
loans complied with the related regulation issued by the authorities. We also evaluated whether the 
methodology, assumptions and inputs used in the impairment assessment conform to the IFRS 9 
impairment model and appropriately reflected the actual outcome. We tested samples of discounts 
and loans to verify their rationality.  
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 

Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 
Financial Holding Companies, Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 
Public Banks, Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms, 
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants, 
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, the guidelines 
issued by the competent authority, and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), 
International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations 
(SIC) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of 
China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
 
 
The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of SinoPac Financial 
Holdings Company Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Group), which 
comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years 
then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and 
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in 
conformity with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Financial 
Holding Companies, Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Public Banks, 
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms, Regulations 
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants, Regulations 
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, the guidelines issued by the 
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endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. 
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matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a 
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The key audit matter of the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 
31, 2022 is stated as follows: 
 
Estimated Impairment of Discounts and Loans 
 
The management assesses, estimates and recognizes impairment of discounts and loans collectively 
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Banking Institutions to Evaluate Assets and Deal with Non-performing/Non-accrual Loans (“the 
Procedures”) endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC) and according to 
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Procedures, the management estimates impairment of discounts and loans based on the overdue 
loans classified by loan term and situation of pledged collateral. According to IFRS 9, impairment 
of discounts and loans is estimated based on assumptions of probability of default and loss given 
default based on historical experience, current market situation and forward-looking information. 
Assessment of evidence of probable default and credit impairment, whether the credit risk has 
increased significantly since the original recognition (including the adoption of forward-looking 
factors), and the assessment of the methodology and assumptions used for estimating impairment 
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estimates. The estimated provision for impairment of discounts and loans calculated according to 
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for the year ended December 31, 2022. 
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accounting policies, judgments for estimations, estimation uncertainty and other related disclosures 
of the estimated impairment of discounts and loans. 
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overdue loans, situation of pledged collateral, and the provision for impairment of discounts and 
loans complied with the related regulation issued by the authorities. We also evaluated whether the 
methodology, assumptions and inputs used in the impairment assessment conform to the IFRS 9 
impairment model and appropriately reflected the actual outcome. We tested samples of discounts 
and loans to verify their rationality.  
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 

Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 
Financial Holding Companies, Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 
Public Banks, Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms, 
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants, 
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, the guidelines 
issued by the competent authority, and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), 
International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations 
(SIC) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of 
China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the 
Group’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

 
2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

 
3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 
4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 
5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 

or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group 
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year 
ended December 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
The engagement partners on the audits resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Mei-Hui 
Wu and Cheng-Hung Kuo. 
 
 
 
 
 
Deloitte & Touche 
Taipei, Taiwan 
Republic of China 
 
March 10, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

英文議事手冊.indd   24英文議事手冊.indd   24 2023/4/19   17:542023/4/19   17:54



-24- -25-
 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the 
Group’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

 
2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

 
3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 
4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 
5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 

or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group 
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year 
ended December 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
The engagement partners on the audits resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Mei-Hui 
Wu and Cheng-Hung Kuo. 
 
 
 
 
 
Deloitte & Touche 
Taipei, Taiwan 
Republic of China 
 
March 10, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

英文議事手冊.indd   25英文議事手冊.indd   25 2023/4/19   17:542023/4/19   17:54



-26- -27- 

SINOPAC FINANCIAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
 
 
  2022  2021 
ASSETS  Amount  %  Amount  % 
         
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, NET (Notes 4, 6 and 45)    $ 66,231,664     3    $ 48,521,295     2 
                     
DUE FROM THE CENTRAL BANK AND CALL LOANS TO BANKS, NET (Notes 7, 45 and 46)     281,921,054     11     217,618,752     9 
                     
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Notes 4, 8, 14 and 45)     91,643,856     4     88,016,347     4 
                     
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Notes 4, 9, 45 and 46)     336,138,847     13     398,688,696     17 
                     
INVESTMENTS IN DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTIZED COST (Notes 4, 10 and 46)     225,460,151     9     167,247,985     7 
                     
SECURITIES PURCHASED UNDER RESELL AGREEMENTS (Notes 4, 11 and 45)     67,873,919     3     50,591,537     2 
                     
RECEIVABLES, NET (Notes 4, 12 and 45)     90,209,758     3     110,085,509     5 
                     
CURRENT INCOME TAX ASSETS (Notes 4, 33 and 45)     125,953     -     87,225     - 
                     
DISCOUNTS AND LOANS, NET (Notes 5, 13, 45 and 46)     1,328,702,915     51     1,191,113,031     50 
                     
INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD (Notes 4 and 15)     1,011,812     -     788,932     - 
                     
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS, NET (Notes 4, 16, 45 and 46)     45,018,164     2     45,766,820     2 
                     
INVESTMENT PROPERTY, NET (Notes 4, 17, 45 and 46)     2,390,819     -     2,422,645     - 
                     
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET (Notes 4, 18, 45 and 46)     13,287,583     -     13,378,256     - 
                     
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS, NET (Notes 4, 19, 45 and 46)     3,646,832     -     3,698,819     - 
                     
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET (Notes 4, 20 and 45)     2,310,197     -     2,212,500     - 
                     
DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS (Notes 4 and 33)     2,014,238     -     2,274,593     - 
                     
OTHER ASSETS, NET (Notes 4, 21 and 45)     30,775,495     1     40,161,920     2 
                     
TOTAL    $ 2,588,763,257     100    $ 2,382,674,862     100 
         
         
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY         
         
DEPOSITS FROM THE CENTRAL BANK AND BANKS (Notes 22 and 45)    $ 72,477,217     3    $ 70,265,085     3 
                     
DUE TO THE CENTRAL BANK AND BANKS     -     -     205,030     - 
                     
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Notes 4, 8 and 45)     59,764,822     2     23,184,543     1 
                     
SECURITIES SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS (Notes 4, 8, 9, 10, 11, 23 and 45)     59,923,315     2     37,796,918     2 
                     
COMMERCIAL PAPERS ISSUED, NET (Notes 24 and 45)     19,102,966     1     39,765,669     2 
                     
PAYABLES (Notes 4, 25, 30, 41 and 45)     50,521,956     2     55,543,537     2 
                     
CURRENT INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (Notes 4, 33 and 45)     1,479,084     -     2,409,322     - 
                     
DEPOSITS AND REMITTANCES (Notes 26 and 45)     2,000,528,731     77     1,835,735,239     77 
                     
BONDS PAYABLE (Notes 4, 27 and 45)     71,242,261     3     62,972,832     3 
                     
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS (Notes 28, 45 and 46)     3,864,926     -     5,366,505     - 
                     
LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (Notes 28, 45 and 46)     2,480,712     -     2,239,088     - 
                     
PREFERRED STOCK LIABILITIES (Notes 4 and 34)     18,437     -     18,437     - 
                     
PROVISIONS (Notes 4, 29 and 30)     3,099,728     -     3,802,653     - 
                     
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Notes 4, 31 and 45)     69,764,427     3     47,672,030     2 
                     
LEASE LIABILITIES (Notes 4, 19 and 45)     3,132,839     -     3,129,982     - 
                     
DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (Notes 4 and 33)     1,668,845     -     978,239     - 
                     
OTHER LIABILITIES (Notes 4, 32 and 45)     15,674,254     1     28,785,901     1 
                     

    Total liabilities     2,434,744,520     94     2,219,871,010     93 
                     
EQUITY         

Capital stock         
Common stock     113,837,646     4     112,710,541     5 

Capital surplus     2,228,781     -     2,228,764     - 
Retained earnings         

Legal reserve     22,112,855     1     20,389,695     1 
Special reserve     483,818     -     483,818     - 
Unappropriated earnings     29,555,849     1     25,033,001     1 

Total retained earnings     52,152,522     2     45,906,514     2 
Other equity     (14,200,212 )     -     1,958,033     - 

                     
Total equity     154,018,737     6     162,803,852     7 

                     
TOTAL    $ 2,588,763,257     100    $ 2,382,674,862     100 
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SINOPAC FINANCIAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED AND 
SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share) 
 
 

    
Percentage 

Increase  
  2022  2021  (Decrease) 
  Amount  %  Amount  %  % 
           
INTEREST INCOME    $ 47,358,582     100    $ 31,179,949     68     52 
                          
INTEREST EXPENSES     (20,455,158)     (43)     (9,059,992)     (20)     126 
                          
NET INTEREST REVENUE (Notes 4, 

35 and 45)     26,903,424     57     22,119,957     48     22 
                          
NET REVENUES OTHER THAN 

INTEREST (Note 4)           
Service fee and commissions income, 

net (Notes 36 and 45)     13,878,860     29     16,992,115     37     (18) 
Gains on financial assets and liabilities 

at fair value through profit or loss, 
net (Notes 37 and 45)     1,481,963     3     2,656,087     6     (44) 

Realized gains on financial assets at 
fair value through other 
comprehensive income (Notes 38 
and 45)     1,268,186     3     2,041,373     5     (38) 

(Losses) gains arising from 
derecognition of financial assets 
measured at amortized cost     (83,790)     -     23,207     -     (461) 

Foreign exchange gains     2,635,522     6     904,209     2     191 
(Impairment loss on assets) reversal of 

impairment loss on assets (Notes 16 
and 39)     (16,228)     -     49,953     -     (132) 

Share of profit of associates for using 
equity method (Note 15)     215,053     -     202,617     -     6 

Net other revenue other than interest 
income (Notes 40 and 45)     962,766     2     713,724     2     35 

                          
Net revenues other than interest     20,342,332     43     23,583,285     52     (14) 

                          
NET REVENUE     47,245,756     100     45,703,242     100     3 
                          
BAD DEBTS EXPENSE, 

COMMITMENT AND GUARANTEE 
LIABILITY PROVISION (Notes 5, 6, 
7, 12, 13, 16 and 29)     (2,444,392)     (5)     (2,226,883)     (5)     10 

                          
(Continued) 
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DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
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impairment loss on assets (Notes 16 
and 39)     (16,228)     -     49,953     -     (132) 

Share of profit of associates for using 
equity method (Note 15)     215,053     -     202,617     -     6 

Net other revenue other than interest 
income (Notes 40 and 45)     962,766     2     713,724     2     35 

                          
Net revenues other than interest     20,342,332     43     23,583,285     52     (14) 

                          
NET REVENUE     47,245,756     100     45,703,242     100     3 
                          
BAD DEBTS EXPENSE, 

COMMITMENT AND GUARANTEE 
LIABILITY PROVISION (Notes 5, 6, 
7, 12, 13, 16 and 29)     (2,444,392)     (5)     (2,226,883)     (5)     10 

                          
(Continued) 

英文議事手冊.indd   27英文議事手冊.indd   27 2023/4/19   17:542023/4/19   17:54



-28- -29-
- 7 - 

SINOPAC FINANCIAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED AND 
SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share) 
 
 

    
Percentage 

Increase  
  2022  2021  (Decrease) 
  Amount  %  Amount  %  % 
           
OPERATING EXPENSES           

Employee benefits expenses (Notes 4, 
30, 41 and 45)    $ (15,819,509)     (34)    $ (16,335,909)     (35)     (3) 

Depreciation and amortization expense 
(Notes 4, 19, 42 and 45)     (2,307,168)     (5)     (2,194,105)     (5)     5 

Other general and administrative 
expenses (Notes 43 and 45)     (7,269,972)     (15)     (6,297,115)     (14)     15 

                          
Total operating expenses     (25,396,649)     (54)     (24,827,129)     (54)     2 

                          
PROFIT FROM CONTINUING 

OPERATIONS BEFORE TAX     19,404,715     41     18,649,230     41     4 
                          
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 4 and 

33)     (3,443,715)     (7)     (2,438,225)     (6)     41 
                          
NET INCOME     15,961,000     34     16,211,005     35     (2) 
                          
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME           

Items that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss           
Remeasurement of defined benefit 

plans     510,950     1     72,531     -     604 
Change in fair value of financial 

liability attributable to change in 
credit risk of liability (Note 34)     39,237     -     (3,539)     -     1,209 

Revaluation (losses) gains on 
investments in equity instruments 
measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income 
(Note 34)     (4,217,479)     (9)     2,864,192     6     (247) 

Income tax related to items that will 
not be reclassified to profit or loss 
(Notes 33 and 34)     (98,341)     -     (15,792)     -     523 
Items that will not be reclassified 

to profit or loss     (3,765,633)     (8)     2,917,392     6     (229) 
(Continued) 
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SINOPAC FINANCIAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED AND 
SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share) 
 
 

    
Percentage 

Increase  
  2022  2021  (Decrease) 
  Amount  %  Amount  %  % 
           

Items that will be reclassified to profit 
or loss           
Exchange differences on translation 

of foreign operations (Note 34)    $ 881,463     2    $ (373,395)     (1)     336 
(Losses) gains from investments in 

debt instruments measured at fair 
value through other 
comprehensive income (Note 34)     (12,720,706)     (27)     (3,978,496)     (8)     220 

Share of other comprehensive (loss) 
income of associates accounted 
for using equity method (Notes 
15 and 34)     (10,104)     -     2,505     -     (503) 

Income tax related to components of 
other comprehensive income that 
will be reclassified to profit or 
loss (Notes 33 and 34)     (114,309)     (1)     44,847     -     (355) 
Items that will be reclassified to 

profit or loss     (11,963,656)     (26)     (4,304,539)     (9)     178 
                          

Other comprehensive income     (15,729,289)     (34)     (1,387,147)     (3)     1,034 
                          
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME    $ 231,711     -    $ 14,823,858     32     (98) 
 
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 44)           

Basic    $ 1.40      $ 1.42     
Diluted    $ 1.40      $ 1.42     

 
 
 
 (Concluded) 
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SINOPAC FINANCIAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED AND 
SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
 
 
  2022  2021 
     
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Profit from continuing operations before tax    $ 19,404,715    $ 18,649,230 
Adjustments to reconcile profit     

Depreciation expense     1,925,546     1,843,916 
Amortization expense     381,622     350,189 
Provision for bad debt expense     2,895,586     2,796,336 
Interest expenses     20,455,158     9,059,992 
Net loss (gain) arising from derecognition of financial assets 

measured at amortized cost     83,790     (23,207) 
Interest income     (47,358,582)     (31,179,949) 
Dividend income     (3,060,424)     (1,143,512) 
Net change in provisions for guarantee liabilities     (56,689)     82,392 
Net change in other provisions     117,209     (45,611) 
Effect of exchange rate changes of corporated bonds payable     -     (3,415) 
Share of profit of associates for using equity method     (215,053)     (202,617) 
Gains on disposal and retirement of property and equipment     (6,109)     (2,107) 
Property and equipment transferred to expense     1,403     595 
Losses on disposal of intangible assets     498     2,727 
Impairment loss (reversal of impairment loss) on financial assets     43,726     (49,953) 
Reversal of impairment loss on non-financial assets     (27,498)     - 
Losses on disposal of collaterals     5,344     - 
Net loss (gain) on changing in leasing contracts     967     (1,033) 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities     
Increase in due from the Central Bank and call loans to banks     (23,572,573)     (3,745,318) 
(Increase) decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or 

loss     (3,627,509)     806,881 
Decrease (increase) in financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income     45,618,081     (49,579,338) 
Increase in investments in debt instruments at amortized cost     (58,157,747)     (4,850,899) 
Increase in securities purchased under resell agreements     (2,539,409)     (336,116) 
Decrease (increase) in receivables     22,849,917     (19,416,996) 
Increase in discounts and loans     (140,868,430)     (48,856,110) 
Decrease (increase) in other financial assets     669,535     (9,556,331) 
Decrease (increase) in other assets     9,335,086     (20,125,363) 
Increase (decrease) in deposits from the Central Bank and banks     2,212,132     (5,249,285) 
Increase (decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss     36,619,516     (3,312,070) 
Increase in securities sold under repurchase agreements     22,126,397     12,161,577 
(Decrease) increase in payables     (8,488,288)     5,687,526 
Increase in deposits and remittances     164,793,492     182,265,001 
Decrease in provisions for employee benefits     (274,293)     (72,029) 
Increase in other financial liabilities     22,092,397     9,354,001 
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities     (13,111,647)     16,118,923 

(Continued) 
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SINOPAC FINANCIAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED AND 
SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
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(Decrease) increase in payables     (8,488,288)     5,687,526 
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SINOPAC FINANCIAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED AND 
SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
 
 
  2022  2021 
     

Net cash generated from operations    $ 70,267,866    $ 61,428,027 
Interest received     44,984,399     30,855,530 
Dividends received     3,025,265     1,142,519 
Interest paid     (17,612,893)     (9,444,181) 
Income tax paid     (3,633,322)     (1,649,494) 

           
Net cash generated from operating activities     97,031,315     82,332,401 

           
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

Acquisition of property and equipment     (1,128,006)     (1,301,452) 
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment     57,469     28,110 
Acquisition of intangible assets     (249,886)     (167,947) 
Proceeds from disposal of collaterals     32,795     - 
Acquisition of right-of-use-assets     (739)     (792) 
Acquisition of investment properties     (1,099)     (346) 

           
Net cash used in investing activities     (1,289,466)     (1,442,427) 

           
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

Decrease in short-term borrowings     (1,581,198)     (6,508,535) 
(Decrease) increase in due to the Central Bank and banks     (205,030)     124,650 
(Decrease) increase in commercial papers issued     (20,662,703)     10,755,912 
Corporate bonds issued     3,000,000     5,000,000 
Repayment of corporate bonds payable     (434,909)     - 
Bank debentures issued     7,000,000     11,000,000 
Repayment of bank debentures payable     (1,300,000)     (5,530,000) 
Proceeds from long-term borrowings     28,703,404     15,934,146 
Repayments of long-term borrowings     (28,624,546)     (15,528,248) 
Repayments of lease liabilities     (877,785)     (869,908) 
Cash dividends paid     (9,016,843)     (7,889,738) 

           
Net cash (used in) generated from financing activities     (23,999,610)     6,488,279 

           
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH 

EQUIVALENTS     1,426,680     (494,475) 
           
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS     73,168,919     86,883,778 
           
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 

YEAR     253,520,365     166,636,587 
           
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR    $ 326,689,284    $ 253,520,365 
 
 
Reconciliation of the amounts in the consolidated statements of cash flows with the equivalent items reported in 

(Continued) 
- 12 - 

the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021: 
 
  December 31 
  2022  2021 
     
Cash and cash equivalents in consolidated balance sheets    $ 66,231,664    $ 48,521,295 
Due from the Central Bank and call loans to banks reclassified as cash 

and cash equivalents under the definition of IAS 7     195,483,168     154,767,591 
Securities purchased under resell agreements reclassified as cash and cash 

equivalents under the definition of IAS 7     64,974,452     50,231,479 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year    $ 326,689,284    $ 253,520,365 
 
 
 
 (Concluded) 
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SINOPAC FINANCIAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED AND 
SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
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Net cash (used in) generated from financing activities     (23,999,610)     6,488,279 

           
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH 

EQUIVALENTS     1,426,680     (494,475) 
           
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS     73,168,919     86,883,778 
           
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 

YEAR     253,520,365     166,636,587 
           
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR    $ 326,689,284    $ 253,520,365 
 
 
Reconciliation of the amounts in the consolidated statements of cash flows with the equivalent items reported in 
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the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021: 
 
  December 31 
  2022  2021 
     
Cash and cash equivalents in consolidated balance sheets    $ 66,231,664    $ 48,521,295 
Due from the Central Bank and call loans to banks reclassified as cash 

and cash equivalents under the definition of IAS 7     195,483,168     154,767,591 
Securities purchased under resell agreements reclassified as cash and cash 

equivalents under the definition of IAS 7     64,974,452     50,231,479 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year    $ 326,689,284    $ 253,520,365 
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SINOPAC FINANCIAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED 
 
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share) 
 
 
  2022  2021 
     
REVENUES     

Share of profit of subsidiaries and associates for using equity method    $ 16,647,027    $ 16,620,299 
Others     54,978     36,033 
     

EXPENSES AND LOSSES     
Operating expenses     (392,252)     (431,124) 
Others     (214,674)     (166,581) 

           
PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE TAX     16,095,079     16,058,627 
           
INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) BENEFIT     (134,079)     152,378 
           
NET INCOME     15,961,000     16,211,005 
           
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME      (15,729,289)     (1,387,147) 
           
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME    $ 231,711    $ 14,823,858 
     
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE     $1.40     $1.42 
     
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE     $1.40     $1.42 
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SINOPAC FINANCIAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED 
 
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share) 
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TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME    $ 231,711    $ 14,823,858 
     
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE     $1.40     $1.42 
     
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE     $1.40     $1.42 
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SINOPAC FINANCIAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED 
 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
 
 
  2022  2021 
     
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Profit from continuing operations before tax    $ 16,095,079    $ 16,058,627 
Adjustments for:     

Depreciation expense     64,019     60,362 
Amortization expense     1,015     474 
Interest expense     160,848     132,455 
Interest income     (548)     (738) 
Dividend income     (1,519)     (1,453) 
Net change in other provisions      3     3 
Share of profit of subsidiaries for using equity method     (16,647,027)     (16,620,299) 
Losses on disposal and retirement of property and equipment     7     11 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities     
Decrease in receivables     29     11 
Increase in other assets     (4,982)     (4,683) 
Increase in payables     337     58,052 
Increase in provisions for employee benefits     9,101     17,535 

Interest received     113     332 
Dividend received     9,018,362     8,204,704 
Interest paid     (158,040)     (125,027) 
Income tax refunded     28,993     18,754 

     
Net cash generated from operating activities     8,565,790     7,799,120 

     
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

Acquisition of property and equipment     (10,808)     (12,475) 
Acquisition of intangible assets     (1,726)     - 

     
Net cash used in investing activities     (12,534)     (12,475) 

     
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

Increase (decrease) in commercial papers issued     507,478     (4,940,368) 
Corporate bonds issued     -     5,000,000 
Distribution of cash dividends     (9,016,843)     (7,889,738) 
Payments of lease liabilities     (45,944)     (41,378) 

     
Net cash used in financing activities     (8,555,309)     (7,871,484) 

     
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS     (2,053)     (84,839) 
     
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 

YEAR     54,763     139,602 
     
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR    $ 52,710    $ 54,763 
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SINOPAC FINANCIAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED 
 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
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SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited 
Articles of Incorporation 

Comparison table of amendments 

Chapter/ 
Article 

Amended Version Current Version Description 

Article 
17 

The Company shall have a Board 
comprising seven (7) to eleven 
(11) members. The number of the 
Directors to be elected within the 
above range is set by the Board. 
The Company adopts the 
candidate nomination system for 
election of the Directors. 
Directors shall be elected from 
among the list of candidates for 
Directors by shareholders in their 
meetings in accordance with the 
laws. 
Among the number of the 
Directors prescribed in the 
preceding paragraph, the number 
of Independent Directors shall be 
no less than three (3) and also no 
less than one-third of the total 
number of the Directors. With 
respect to professional 
qualifications, restrictions on 
retention of shares and  
concurrent positions held, 
assessment of independence, 
method of nomination and 
election, and other relevant 
requirements to be complied  
with for Independent Directors, 
the Company shall follow the 

The Company shall have a 
Board comprising seven (7) to 
eleven (11) members. The 
number of the Directors to be 
elected within the above range is 
set by the Board. The Company 
adopts the candidate nomination 
system for election of the 
Directors. Directors shall be 
elected from among the list of 
candidates for Directors by 
shareholders in their meetings in 
accordance with the laws. 
Among the number of the 
Directors prescribed in the 
preceding paragraph, the number 
of Independent Directors shall be 
no less than three (3) and also no 
less than one-fifth of the total 
number of the Directors. With 
respect to professional 
qualifications, restrictions on 
retention of shares and 
concurrent positions held, 
assessment of independence, 
method of nomination and 
election, and other relevant 
requirements to be complied 
with for Independent Directors, 
the Company shall follow the 

In line with the 
provisions of Article 
31 of the "Corporate 
Governance Best 
Practice Principles 
for Financial 
Holding 
Companies", this 
article amends the 
number of 
independent 
directors from not 
less than one-fifth of 
the number of 
directors to one-
third, and amends the 
term in the second 
paragraph. 

AAttttaacchhmmeenntt  77  
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SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited 
Articles of Incorporation 

Comparison table of amendments 

Chapter/ 
Article 

Amended Version Current Version Description 
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number of the Directors. With 
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election, and other relevant 
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the Company shall follow the 

In line with the 
provisions of Article 
31 of the "Corporate 
Governance Best 
Practice Principles 
for Financial 
Holding 
Companies", this 
article amends the 
number of 
independent 
directors from not 
less than one-fifth of 
the number of 
directors to one-
third, and amends the 
term in the second 
paragraph. 
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Chapter/ 
Article 

Amended Version Current Version Description 

relevant laws and regulations 
prescribed by the competent 
authority in charge of securities 
affairs. 
 

relevant laws and regulations 
prescribed by the competent 
authority in charge of securities 
affairs. 
 

Article 
39 

These Articles of Incorporation 
were adopted on November 19, 
2001. Amendments to the Articles 
of Incorporation are as follows: 
the 1st amendment on June 27th, 
2003; the 2nd amendment on June 
11th, 2004; the 3rd amendment on 
August 26th, 2005; the 4th 
amendment on June 9th, 2006; the 
5th amendment on June 11th, 
2007; the 6th amendment on June 
6th, 2008; the 7th amendment on 
June 19th, 2009; the 8th 
amendment on December 11th, 
2009; the 9th amendment on June 
18th, 2010; the 10th amendment 
on June 15th, 2012; the 11th 
amendment on June 12th, 2014; 
the 12th amendment on June 12th, 
2015; the 13th amendment on 
June 17th, 2016; the 14th 
amendment on July 20th, 2021; 
and the 15th amendment on May 
27th, 2022; and the 16th 
amendment on May 24th, 2023. 
 

These Articles of Incorporation 
were adopted on November 19, 
2001. Amendments to the 
Articles of Incorporation are as 
follows: the 1st amendment on 
June 27th, 2003; the 2nd 
amendment on June 11th, 2004; 
the 3rd amendment on August 
26th, 2005; the 4th amendment 
on June 9th, 2006; the 5th 
amendment on June 11th, 2007; 
the 6th amendment on June 6th, 
2008; the 7th amendment on 
June 19th, 2009; the 8th 
amendment on December 11th, 
2009; the 9th amendment on 
June 18th, 2010; the 10th 
amendment on June 15th, 2012; 
the 11th amendment on June 
12th, 2014; the 12th amendment 
on June 12th, 2015; the 13th 
amendment on June 17th, 2016; 
and the 14th amendment on July 
20th, 2021; and the 15th 
amendment on May 27th, 2022. 

 

The date of the 
amendment to the 
Articles of 
Incorporation has 

been added. 

 
 

 

  

SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited  

Articles of Incorporation 

 
CHAPTER ONE GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Article 1 
SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited (hereinafter the “Company”) is incorporated 

pursuant to the Financial Holding Company Act, the Company Act, and other laws and regulations. 

 
Article 2 

The (Chinese) name of the Company is “永豐金融控股股份有限公司” (literally, 

Yuen Foong Financial Holdings Company Limited by Shares) and the short form of the name is 
“永豐金控.”  The Company’s English name is “SINOPAC FINANCIAL 

HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED” and the short form of the English name is “SINOPAC 

HOLDINGS.” 

 
Article 3 

The Company is headquartered in Taipei City, Taiwan, R.O.C. The Company may establish 

domestic and overseas branches upon the resolution of its Board of Directors (hereinafter the 

“Board”) and approval by the competent authority. 

 
Article 4 

Public notice and announcement given by the Company shall be handled in accordance with 

the Company Act. 

 

CHAPTER TWO SCOPE OF BUSINESS 

Article 5 

The Company is engaged in the business categorized as the H801011 financial holding 

company industry. 

英文議事手冊.indd   40英文議事手冊.indd   40 2023/4/19   17:542023/4/19   17:54



-40- -41-

 

  

Chapter/ 
Article 

Amended Version Current Version Description 

relevant laws and regulations 
prescribed by the competent 
authority in charge of securities 
affairs. 
 

relevant laws and regulations 
prescribed by the competent 
authority in charge of securities 
affairs. 
 

Article 
39 

These Articles of Incorporation 
were adopted on November 19, 
2001. Amendments to the Articles 
of Incorporation are as follows: 
the 1st amendment on June 27th, 
2003; the 2nd amendment on June 
11th, 2004; the 3rd amendment on 
August 26th, 2005; the 4th 
amendment on June 9th, 2006; the 
5th amendment on June 11th, 
2007; the 6th amendment on June 
6th, 2008; the 7th amendment on 
June 19th, 2009; the 8th 
amendment on December 11th, 
2009; the 9th amendment on June 
18th, 2010; the 10th amendment 
on June 15th, 2012; the 11th 
amendment on June 12th, 2014; 
the 12th amendment on June 12th, 
2015; the 13th amendment on 
June 17th, 2016; the 14th 
amendment on July 20th, 2021; 
and the 15th amendment on May 
27th, 2022; and the 16th 
amendment on May 24th, 2023. 
 

These Articles of Incorporation 
were adopted on November 19, 
2001. Amendments to the 
Articles of Incorporation are as 
follows: the 1st amendment on 
June 27th, 2003; the 2nd 
amendment on June 11th, 2004; 
the 3rd amendment on August 
26th, 2005; the 4th amendment 
on June 9th, 2006; the 5th 
amendment on June 11th, 2007; 
the 6th amendment on June 6th, 
2008; the 7th amendment on 
June 19th, 2009; the 8th 
amendment on December 11th, 
2009; the 9th amendment on 
June 18th, 2010; the 10th 
amendment on June 15th, 2012; 
the 11th amendment on June 
12th, 2014; the 12th amendment 
on June 12th, 2015; the 13th 
amendment on June 17th, 2016; 
and the 14th amendment on July 
20th, 2021; and the 15th 
amendment on May 27th, 2022. 

 

The date of the 
amendment to the 
Articles of 
Incorporation has 

been added. 

 
 

 

  

SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited  

Articles of Incorporation 

 
CHAPTER ONE GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Article 1 
SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited (hereinafter the “Company”) is incorporated 

pursuant to the Financial Holding Company Act, the Company Act, and other laws and regulations. 

 
Article 2 

The (Chinese) name of the Company is “永豐金融控股股份有限公司” (literally, 

Yuen Foong Financial Holdings Company Limited by Shares) and the short form of the name is 
“永豐金控.”  The Company’s English name is “SINOPAC FINANCIAL 

HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED” and the short form of the English name is “SINOPAC 

HOLDINGS.” 

 
Article 3 

The Company is headquartered in Taipei City, Taiwan, R.O.C. The Company may establish 

domestic and overseas branches upon the resolution of its Board of Directors (hereinafter the 

“Board”) and approval by the competent authority. 

 
Article 4 

Public notice and announcement given by the Company shall be handled in accordance with 

the Company Act. 

 

CHAPTER TWO SCOPE OF BUSINESS 

Article 5 

The Company is engaged in the business categorized as the H801011 financial holding 

company industry. 
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Article 6 

The Company’s scope of business is as follows: 

1. The Company may invest in the following businesses: 

(1) financial holding; 

(2) banking; 

(3) bills finance; 

(4) credit card; 

(5) trust; 

(6) insurance; 

(7) securities; 

(8) futures; 

(9) venture capital; 

(10) foreign financial institutions which have been approved for investment by the competent 
authority; and 

(11) other financial related businesses identified by the competent authority. 

2. Management of those invested businesses mentioned in the preceding subparagraphs; 

3. The Company may apply to the competent authority for approval of its investment in business 

other than those listed in the first subparagraph, but may not participate in the business 

operation of the invested business; and 

4. Other relevant businesses approved by the competent authority. 
 

Article 7 

(Deleted.) 

CHAPTER THREE CAPITAL STOCK 

Article 8 

The total authorized capital of the Company is one hundred eighty billion New Taiwan Dollars 

(NT$180,000,000,000), divided into eighteen billion (18,000,000,000) shares (including seventy 

million (70,000,000) Class A preferred shares) with a par value of Ten New Taiwan Dollars (NT$10) 

each. The Board is authorized to issue the unissued shares in batches. Within the shares stated 

above, five hundred millions (500,000,000) common shares shall be reserved for the purpose of 

issuance upon exercise of stock warrants, preferred shares with warrants or corporate bonds with 

 

  

warrants. In each issue of the Company’s employee stock warrants, the determination of the amount 

of shares for the purpose of issuance upon exercise of employee stock warrants of the Company 

shall follow relevant laws and regulations of competent authority of securities. 

 
Article 8-1 

The rights, obligations, and other important terms of Class A preferred shares issued by the 

Company are as follows: 

1. If the Company has any earnings at the end of any given fiscal year, the Company shall use the 

earnings to cover its accumulated losses in previous fiscal years, pay all taxes pursuant to 

relevant laws, set aside legal reserve(s) and provide or reserve special reserve(s) in accordance 

with relevant laws and these Articles of Incorporation before distributing the remaining earnings 

for accumulated and current dividends for Class A preferred shares. 

2. The calculation of the dividend yield of Class A preferred shares is as follows: (1) within the 

first fifteen years since the issue date of Class A preferred shares, the dividend yield of Class A 

preferred shares for the first calendar year is calculated based on the fixed rate of one-year 

period annuity savings of the “Chung Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd.”(hereinafter “Chunghwa Post”) 

on the Company’s record date for capital increase plus 0.7% per annum, whereas Class A 

preferred shares’ dividend yield of the following year(s) is calculated based on the fixed rate of 

Chunghwa Post’s one-year period annuity savings on the anniversary of the issue date plus 0.7% 

per annum; and (2) starting from the sixteenth anniversary of the issue date of Class A preferred 

shares, the dividend yield of Class A preferred shares for the following year is calculated based 

on the fixed rate of Chunghwa Post’s one-year period annuity savings on the anniversary of the 

issue date plus 1.5% per annum. All payable dividends of Class A preferred  shares  are  

calculated based on the issuing price and are paid annually in cash in one lump sum. Dividends 

of Class A preferred shares may be distributed only after the Company’s shareholders have 

approved the Company’s financial statements in their annual general meetings. Following the 

aforesaid approval, the Board shall set the record date for distribution of the abovementioned 

dividends. Cash dividends payable for the year of issuance and/or the year of redemption shall 

be prorated according to the ratio of the actual number of days Class A preferred shares remain 
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Article 6 

The Company’s scope of business is as follows: 

1. The Company may invest in the following businesses: 

(1) financial holding; 

(2) banking; 

(3) bills finance; 

(4) credit card; 

(5) trust; 

(6) insurance; 

(7) securities; 

(8) futures; 

(9) venture capital; 

(10) foreign financial institutions which have been approved for investment by the competent 
authority; and 

(11) other financial related businesses identified by the competent authority. 

2. Management of those invested businesses mentioned in the preceding subparagraphs; 

3. The Company may apply to the competent authority for approval of its investment in business 

other than those listed in the first subparagraph, but may not participate in the business 

operation of the invested business; and 

4. Other relevant businesses approved by the competent authority. 
 

Article 7 

(Deleted.) 

CHAPTER THREE CAPITAL STOCK 

Article 8 

The total authorized capital of the Company is one hundred eighty billion New Taiwan Dollars 

(NT$180,000,000,000), divided into eighteen billion (18,000,000,000) shares (including seventy 

million (70,000,000) Class A preferred shares) with a par value of Ten New Taiwan Dollars (NT$10) 

each. The Board is authorized to issue the unissued shares in batches. Within the shares stated 

above, five hundred millions (500,000,000) common shares shall be reserved for the purpose of 

issuance upon exercise of stock warrants, preferred shares with warrants or corporate bonds with 

 

  

warrants. In each issue of the Company’s employee stock warrants, the determination of the amount 

of shares for the purpose of issuance upon exercise of employee stock warrants of the Company 

shall follow relevant laws and regulations of competent authority of securities. 

 
Article 8-1 

The rights, obligations, and other important terms of Class A preferred shares issued by the 

Company are as follows: 

1. If the Company has any earnings at the end of any given fiscal year, the Company shall use the 

earnings to cover its accumulated losses in previous fiscal years, pay all taxes pursuant to 

relevant laws, set aside legal reserve(s) and provide or reserve special reserve(s) in accordance 

with relevant laws and these Articles of Incorporation before distributing the remaining earnings 

for accumulated and current dividends for Class A preferred shares. 

2. The calculation of the dividend yield of Class A preferred shares is as follows: (1) within the 

first fifteen years since the issue date of Class A preferred shares, the dividend yield of Class A 

preferred shares for the first calendar year is calculated based on the fixed rate of one-year 

period annuity savings of the “Chung Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd.”(hereinafter “Chunghwa Post”) 

on the Company’s record date for capital increase plus 0.7% per annum, whereas Class A 

preferred shares’ dividend yield of the following year(s) is calculated based on the fixed rate of 

Chunghwa Post’s one-year period annuity savings on the anniversary of the issue date plus 0.7% 

per annum; and (2) starting from the sixteenth anniversary of the issue date of Class A preferred 

shares, the dividend yield of Class A preferred shares for the following year is calculated based 

on the fixed rate of Chunghwa Post’s one-year period annuity savings on the anniversary of the 

issue date plus 1.5% per annum. All payable dividends of Class A preferred  shares  are  

calculated based on the issuing price and are paid annually in cash in one lump sum. Dividends 

of Class A preferred shares may be distributed only after the Company’s shareholders have 

approved the Company’s financial statements in their annual general meetings. Following the 

aforesaid approval, the Board shall set the record date for distribution of the abovementioned 

dividends. Cash dividends payable for the year of issuance and/or the year of redemption shall 

be prorated according to the ratio of the actual number of days Class A preferred shares remain 
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outstanding over the days of the given year. Distribution of cash dividends payable for the year 

of redemption shall be announced after the annual general meeting of the Company’s 

shareholders in the year following the year of redemption. 

3. If, at the end of any given fiscal year, the Company has no earnings or insufficient earnings to 

fully pay off dividends for Class A preferred shares, or suspends distribution of dividends for 

Class A preferred shares because it will cause the Company’s integrated Capital Adequacy 

Ratio to fall below the minimum requirement stipulated by the laws and regulations or the 

competent authorities, the Company shall accumulate the undistributed dividends, together with 

accumulated dividends undistributed in previous years, and distribute them in a fiscal year when 

the Company has generated sufficient earnings. 

4. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company, Class Apreferred 

shareholders shall be given priority to claim on the Company’s residual assets over common 

shareholders. Nonetheless, the amount claimed by Class A preferred shareholders on the basis 

of the abovementioned priority shall not exceed the sum of Class A preferred shares’ issuing 

price plus respective dividends which have been accumulated but undistributed in previous 

years. 

5. Class A preferred shareholders are not entitled to cast votes or any right to vote on election in 

shareholders’ meetings. However, Class A preferred shareholders are eligible to be elected as 

Directors and are entitled to vote in Class A preferred shareholders’ meetings. 

6. Except dividends described in the sub-paragraph 2 of this Article, Class A preferred 

shareholders are not entitled to receive earning distribution or capital surplus distribution (in the 

form of cash or capital reserves being reallocated as capital) for common shares. 

7. When the Company issues new shares to raise capital, Class A preferred shareholders may be 

entitled to preemptive rights on the new shares. 

8. Commencing from the day following a full three calendar years after the issue date of Class A 

preferred shares, each Class A preferred shareholder may at any time, except during the lock-in 

periods described below, submit a request application to the Company to convert a portion or 

all of the outstanding Class A preferred shares held by the shareholder-applicant on a one for 

one basis into common shares: (1) the period for book closure required under the law; (2) the 

 

  

period beginning from 3 business days prior to the date(s) determined by the Board for the 

public announcement of the book closure period for granting dividends gratis, for distribution 

of cash dividend, or for rights issue, until the record date for such right; and (3) any other lock-

in periods prohibiting conversion of shares required by the law. The rights and obligations of 

common shares converted from Class A preferred shares are same as that of the Company’s 

common shares. 

9. Class A preferred shareholders who have converted their shares into common shares prior to 

the ex-rights/ex-dividend base day of any given year are not entitled, with regard to shares which 

have been converted into common shares, for dividends distributed for Class A preferred shares 

for the given year and the years thereafter, but are entitled with priority to receive distribution 

of accumulated dividend, if any, which has not been distributed in previous years, for the given 

year and the years thereafter. Moreover, Class A preferred shareholders who have received 

preferred shares’ dividends distributed for the given year are not eligible, with regard to shares 

which have been converted into common shares, to receive dividends for common shares 

distributed in the same year. 

10. Class A preferred shares are perpetual securities. The Company has the option of using its 

remaining earnings, proceeds from issue of new shares, or any other   ways permitted by the 

laws and regulations, to redeem Class A preferred shares in whole or in part, no earlier than the 

day following the fifteenth anniversary of the issue date, at the price of issue price plus 

undistributed dividends accumulated in previous years and dividends to be distributed for the  

current  year  calculated based on the ratio of the actual number of days Class A preferred 

shares remain outstanding over the days of the given year. The Company shall send a thirty 

(30) days prior written notice to Class A preferred shareholders before the Company redeems 

the preferred shares. The Company’s redemption notice does not deprive Class A preferred 

shareholders of their right to convert their preferred shares into common shares before the 

Company redeems their preferred shares. 

Article 8-2 

(Deleted.) 
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outstanding over the days of the given year. Distribution of cash dividends payable for the year 

of redemption shall be announced after the annual general meeting of the Company’s 

shareholders in the year following the year of redemption. 

3. If, at the end of any given fiscal year, the Company has no earnings or insufficient earnings to 

fully pay off dividends for Class A preferred shares, or suspends distribution of dividends for 

Class A preferred shares because it will cause the Company’s integrated Capital Adequacy 

Ratio to fall below the minimum requirement stipulated by the laws and regulations or the 

competent authorities, the Company shall accumulate the undistributed dividends, together with 

accumulated dividends undistributed in previous years, and distribute them in a fiscal year when 

the Company has generated sufficient earnings. 

4. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company, Class Apreferred 

shareholders shall be given priority to claim on the Company’s residual assets over common 

shareholders. Nonetheless, the amount claimed by Class A preferred shareholders on the basis 

of the abovementioned priority shall not exceed the sum of Class A preferred shares’ issuing 

price plus respective dividends which have been accumulated but undistributed in previous 

years. 

5. Class A preferred shareholders are not entitled to cast votes or any right to vote on election in 

shareholders’ meetings. However, Class A preferred shareholders are eligible to be elected as 

Directors and are entitled to vote in Class A preferred shareholders’ meetings. 

6. Except dividends described in the sub-paragraph 2 of this Article, Class A preferred 

shareholders are not entitled to receive earning distribution or capital surplus distribution (in the 

form of cash or capital reserves being reallocated as capital) for common shares. 

7. When the Company issues new shares to raise capital, Class A preferred shareholders may be 

entitled to preemptive rights on the new shares. 

8. Commencing from the day following a full three calendar years after the issue date of Class A 

preferred shares, each Class A preferred shareholder may at any time, except during the lock-in 

periods described below, submit a request application to the Company to convert a portion or 

all of the outstanding Class A preferred shares held by the shareholder-applicant on a one for 

one basis into common shares: (1) the period for book closure required under the law; (2) the 

 

  

period beginning from 3 business days prior to the date(s) determined by the Board for the 

public announcement of the book closure period for granting dividends gratis, for distribution 

of cash dividend, or for rights issue, until the record date for such right; and (3) any other lock-

in periods prohibiting conversion of shares required by the law. The rights and obligations of 

common shares converted from Class A preferred shares are same as that of the Company’s 

common shares. 

9. Class A preferred shareholders who have converted their shares into common shares prior to 

the ex-rights/ex-dividend base day of any given year are not entitled, with regard to shares which 

have been converted into common shares, for dividends distributed for Class A preferred shares 

for the given year and the years thereafter, but are entitled with priority to receive distribution 

of accumulated dividend, if any, which has not been distributed in previous years, for the given 

year and the years thereafter. Moreover, Class A preferred shareholders who have received 

preferred shares’ dividends distributed for the given year are not eligible, with regard to shares 

which have been converted into common shares, to receive dividends for common shares 

distributed in the same year. 

10. Class A preferred shares are perpetual securities. The Company has the option of using its 

remaining earnings, proceeds from issue of new shares, or any other   ways permitted by the 

laws and regulations, to redeem Class A preferred shares in whole or in part, no earlier than the 

day following the fifteenth anniversary of the issue date, at the price of issue price plus 

undistributed dividends accumulated in previous years and dividends to be distributed for the  

current  year  calculated based on the ratio of the actual number of days Class A preferred 

shares remain outstanding over the days of the given year. The Company shall send a thirty 

(30) days prior written notice to Class A preferred shareholders before the Company redeems 

the preferred shares. The Company’s redemption notice does not deprive Class A preferred 

shareholders of their right to convert their preferred shares into common shares before the 

Company redeems their preferred shares. 

Article 8-2 

(Deleted.) 
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Article 9 
All shares of the Company shall be duly issued as registered shares and shall have been 

signed and sealed by the director representing the Company, and be duly certified by the 

authenticated banks. The Company may opt for not issuing any share certificate for newly issued 

shares, provided that the Company shall register these book-entry securities with centralized 

securities depository enterprises. 

 
Article 10 

Shareholders shall provide their names, address of their residence or dwelling places, and 

seal specimens to the Company for record-keeping purpose. The same instruction shall be applied 

when shareholders change their aforementioned information. Shareholders shall present the same 

seals as kept in the Company’s records when collecting dividends or exercising other rights. 

 
Article 11 

All transfers of the Company’s shares shall be suspended within sixty (60) days prior to the 

commencement of each annual general meeting of shareholders, within thirty (30) days prior to 

the commencement of each extraordinary meeting of shareholders, or within five (5) days prior to 

the record date determined by the Company for distribution of dividends or other benefits. 

 

Article 12 

The Company shall handle its shareholder services in accordance with the Regulations 

Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies. 

 

CHAPTER FOUR SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING 

Article 13 

The Company has two types of shareholders’ meetings, including general meetings and 

extraordinary meetings of shareholders. Unless otherwise specified by the laws and regulations, all 

shareholders’ meetings shall be convened by the Board in accordance with the laws. General 

meetings of shareholders shall be convened within six (6) months after the end of each fiscal year, 

 

  

whereas an extraordinary meeting of shareholders is convened in accordance with the laws when 

necessary. 

 
Article 13-1 

The shareholders' meeting can be held by means of visual communication network or other 

methods promulgated by the central competent authority.  

In case a shareholders' meeting is proceeded via visual communication network, the 

shareholders taking part in such a visual communication meeting shall be deemed to have attended 

the meeting in person. 

For the preceding two paragraphs, the Company shall be subject to prescriptions provided for 

by the competent authority in charge of securities affairs, including the prerequisites, procedures, 

and other compliance matters. 

 
Article 14 

Unless otherwise provided by the laws, resolutions at a shareholders’ meeting shall be adopted 

by a majority of presenting shareholders representing a majority of the total number of issued and 

outstanding shares. Except otherwise provided by the laws and regulations, each shareholder shall 

be entitled to one (1) vote for each share held by such shareholder. 

 
Article 15 

A shareholder who is unable to attend a shareholders’ meeting may duly execute a proxy letter 

printed by the Company expressly stating therein the scope of the power authorized in order to 

appoint a proxy agent to attend the meeting on his behalf. The Regulations Governing the Use of 

Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies shall apply to the use of 

proxies mentioned above. Except for trust business or stock agencies approved by the competent 

authority, when one person acts as a proxy agent of two or more shareholders, the amount of voting 

rights represented by the proxy agent shall not exceed three percent (3%) of the total number of 

voting rights attached to all issued shares of the Company. Any votes in excess of this three percent 
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Article 9 
All shares of the Company shall be duly issued as registered shares and shall have been 

signed and sealed by the director representing the Company, and be duly certified by the 

authenticated banks. The Company may opt for not issuing any share certificate for newly issued 

shares, provided that the Company shall register these book-entry securities with centralized 

securities depository enterprises. 

 
Article 10 

Shareholders shall provide their names, address of their residence or dwelling places, and 

seal specimens to the Company for record-keeping purpose. The same instruction shall be applied 

when shareholders change their aforementioned information. Shareholders shall present the same 

seals as kept in the Company’s records when collecting dividends or exercising other rights. 

 
Article 11 

All transfers of the Company’s shares shall be suspended within sixty (60) days prior to the 

commencement of each annual general meeting of shareholders, within thirty (30) days prior to 

the commencement of each extraordinary meeting of shareholders, or within five (5) days prior to 

the record date determined by the Company for distribution of dividends or other benefits. 

 

Article 12 

The Company shall handle its shareholder services in accordance with the Regulations 

Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies. 

 

CHAPTER FOUR SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING 

Article 13 

The Company has two types of shareholders’ meetings, including general meetings and 

extraordinary meetings of shareholders. Unless otherwise specified by the laws and regulations, all 

shareholders’ meetings shall be convened by the Board in accordance with the laws. General 

meetings of shareholders shall be convened within six (6) months after the end of each fiscal year, 

 

  

whereas an extraordinary meeting of shareholders is convened in accordance with the laws when 

necessary. 

 
Article 13-1 

The shareholders' meeting can be held by means of visual communication network or other 

methods promulgated by the central competent authority.  

In case a shareholders' meeting is proceeded via visual communication network, the 

shareholders taking part in such a visual communication meeting shall be deemed to have attended 

the meeting in person. 

For the preceding two paragraphs, the Company shall be subject to prescriptions provided for 

by the competent authority in charge of securities affairs, including the prerequisites, procedures, 

and other compliance matters. 

 
Article 14 

Unless otherwise provided by the laws, resolutions at a shareholders’ meeting shall be adopted 

by a majority of presenting shareholders representing a majority of the total number of issued and 

outstanding shares. Except otherwise provided by the laws and regulations, each shareholder shall 

be entitled to one (1) vote for each share held by such shareholder. 

 
Article 15 

A shareholder who is unable to attend a shareholders’ meeting may duly execute a proxy letter 

printed by the Company expressly stating therein the scope of the power authorized in order to 

appoint a proxy agent to attend the meeting on his behalf. The Regulations Governing the Use of 

Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies shall apply to the use of 

proxies mentioned above. Except for trust business or stock agencies approved by the competent 

authority, when one person acts as a proxy agent of two or more shareholders, the amount of voting 

rights represented by the proxy agent shall not exceed three percent (3%) of the total number of 

voting rights attached to all issued shares of the Company. Any votes in excess of this three percent 

英文議事手冊.indd   47英文議事手冊.indd   47 2023/4/19   17:542023/4/19   17:54



-48- -49-

 

  

(3%) threshold shall not be counted. 

 
Article 16 

Representative of institutional shareholders shall not be limited to one person, provided that 

the voting right of such institutional shareholder shall be determined by the aggregate number of 

the shares held by such institutional shareholders. 

When the representatives mentioned in the preceding paragraph have two or more persons, 

they shall exercise their voting rights jointly. 

With respect to the qualifications, scope, methods of exercise, operating procedures and other 

matters for compliance with respect to exercising voting power separately in the preceding 

paragraph, the Company shall follow the relevant laws and regulations prescribed by the competent 

authority in charge of securities affairs. 

 
CHAPTER FIVE DIRECTORS 

Article 17 

The Company shall have a Board comprising seven (7) to eleven (11) members. The number 

of the Directors to be elected within the above range is set by the Board. The Company adopts the 

candidate nomination system for election of the Directors. Directors shall be elected from among 

the list of candidates for Directors by shareholders in their meetings in accordance with the laws. 

Among the number of the Directors prescribed in the preceding paragraph, the number of 

Independent Directors shall be no less than three (3) and also no less than one-third of the total 

number of the Directors. With respect to professional qualifications, restrictions on retention of 

shares and concurrent positions held, assessment of independence, method of nomination and 

election, and other relevant requirements to be complied with for Independent Directors, the 

Company shall follow the relevant laws and regulations prescribed by the competent authority in 

charge of securities affairs. 

 
Article 17-1 

 

  

Starting from the fifth (5th) Board, the Company shall establish an Audit Committee 

composing of all Independent Directors and not be fewer than three persons in number. One 

Committee member shall be the convener and at least one Committee member shall specialize in 

accounting or finance. The responsibilities, organizational rules, and other relevant requirements 

to be complied with for the Audit Committee, the Company shall follow the relevant laws and 

regulations, as well as those stipulated in these Articles of Incorporation. 

 
Article 17-2 

The Company shall establish a Compensation Committee in accordance with the laws and 

may establish other various kinds of functional committees as well. The organizational rules for 

each committee shall be formulated and approved by the Board. 
 

Article 18 

The percentage of all outstanding shares retained by all Directors combined shall not be less 

than the specific percentage required by the competent authority in charge of securities affairs. 

 
Article 19 

All Directors serve a three-year term and may be re-elected. If new Directors have not been 

promptly elected upon expiration of the term of current Directors, the term of current Directors 

shall be extended until new Directors are elected and take office. 

 
Article 20 

The Chairperson of the Company shall be elected from among the Directors and by a majority 

vote of the Directors present at a Board meeting attended by at least two-thirds (2/3) of the 

Directors. When necessary, the Company may have a Deputy Chairperson elected likewise. 

 
Article 21 

The Chairperson shall be the convener of shareholders’ meetings and Board meetings, and the 
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(3%) threshold shall not be counted. 
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official representative of the Company. In the event the Chairperson is absent or unable to perform 

his duties for cause, the Deputy Chairperson, if any, shall act on behalf of the Chairperson. If there 

is no Deputy Chairperson or if the Deputy Chairperson is absent or unable to perform his duties 

for cause, the Chairperson shall designate a Director to act on his behalf.  In the absence of the 

aforementioned designation, the Directors may elect one Director from among all of them to act 

on behalf of the Chairperson. 

 
Article 22 

Unless otherwise stipulated by the laws and regulations, Board meetings shall be convened 

by the Chairperson. Moreover, unless otherwise stipulated by the laws or these Articles of 

Incorporation, resolutions of the Board shall be adopted by a majority of the Directors present at a 

Board meeting with a majority attendance by the Directors. 

Directors shall personally attend Board meetings. In the event that a Director is unable to 

attend a Board meeting for cause, the Director may duly execute a proxy letter indicating the scope 

of authorization as stated in the reasons for calling a Board meeting in order to appoint another 

Director as a proxy agent to attend Board meeting on his behalf. Nevertheless, each   

aforementioned Director-proxy agent may be appointed by only one other Director. 

 
Article 23 

The powers and duties of the Board are as follows: 

1. Review and approval of the Company’s business and financial policies; 

2. Approval of the Company’s budget and proposing final account results; 

3. Proposing amendments to the Articles of Incorporation; 

4. Review and approval of the Company’s organizational rules; 

5. Review and approval of the Company’s policies and guidelines of corporate governance; 

6. Review and approval of the Company’s major rules; 

7. Proposing the Company’s capital increase and approval of the issuance of the Company’s 
shares; 

8. Proposing the distribution plans for earnings; 

9. Resolution on the issuance of the Company’s corporate bonds; 

10. Resolution on plans for redeeming shares of the Company; 

 

  

11. Approval of appointment and dismissal of the Company’s officers and other employees with 
equivalent position levels, and their respective compensation; 

12. Approval of or proposing the acquisition or disposition of assets; 

13. Approval of and editing/drafting important contracts to be entered with third parties; 

14. Approval of the appointment, dismissal, and compensation of the certified public accountants 
auditing and certifying financial statements; 

15. Appointing Directors and Supervisors of subsidiaries owned by the Company; 

16. Approval of compensation guidelines for traveling allowance and attendance fees for the 
Directors and consultants; 

17. Approval of the distribution ratio of compensation for the Directors; 

18. Approval of the distribution form and ratio of compensation for employees; and 

19. Other powers and duties vested in the Board pursuant to the laws and regulations, or 
authorized by the meetings of shareholders. 

 
Article 24 

(Deleted.) 
 

Article 25 

(Deleted.) 

 

Article 26 

Officers of the Company, or directors, supervisors, or officers of the Company’s subsidiaries 

may be invited by the Board to attend Board meetings, but are not entitled to any right to vote. 

 
Article 27 

(Deleted.) 

 
Article 28 

The Directors of the Company may concurrently be the Directors and 

Supervisors of the Company’s subsidiaries. 
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Article 28-1 

Compensation for the Chairperson, the Deputy Chairperson, and the Directors is authorized 

and determined by the Board in light of the compensation standard in the industry. 

 

CHAPTER SIX MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

Article 29 

The Company shall have one President. The appointment, dismissal, and compensation of the 

President shall be proposed by the Chairperson to the Board, and approved by a resolution adopted 

by a majority of the Directors present at a Board meeting with a majority attendance by the 

Directors. 

 
Article 30 

The following matters shall be presented by the President to the Board for approval or proposed 

by the Board to a shareholders’ meeting for resolution and implementation: 

1. Business plans; 
2. Various major rules; 
3. Establishment, change, and revocation of the Company’ various divisions; 
4. Establishing various committees, and proposing various business guidelines and policies of the 

Company; 
5. Rental, purchase, sale or construction of real estate for the Company’s own use; 
6. Preparation of budgets and presentation of final accounts; 
7. Execution of important contracts; and 
8. Other matters required to be presented to the Board or presented by the Board to a 

shareholders’ meeting for resolution or review. 
 

Article 31 

The following matters shall be decided and executed by the President, or executed by 

subordinate employees designated by the President: 

1. Management of the Company’s business according to the business plans and policies 

 

  

approved by the Board, and execution of documents necessary for the Company’s day-

to-day business operation; 

2. Enactment of rules of lesser significance; 

3. Handling matters designated by the Board and matters mandated by law; 

4. Supervising and instructing subordinate employees to carry out their assigned duties; 

5. Enforcement of the budget plans; and 

6. Handling other matters authorized by the Board. 

 

Article 32 

In the event that the President is unable to perform his duties for cause, the Chairperson shall 

appoint one of the Executive Vice Presidents, whose appointment to be approved by the Board, to 

act on behalf of the President. 

 
Article 33 

The Company shall have Executive Vice Presidents, Senior Vice Presidents, Assistant Vice   

Presidents, and a number of staff members of equivalent rankings. The appointment, dismissal, and 

compensation of these managerial personnel shall be presented by the President to the Board and 

approved by a resolution adopted by majority of the Board present at a Board meeting with a 

majority attendance by the Directors. The appointment, dismissal, and compensation of other staff 

members shall be approved by the President. 

 
Article 34 

The Company shall have one Chief Audit Executive (hereinafter the “CAE”) supervising the 

Company’s internal audit activities in accordance with the resolutions of the Board. The 

appointment, dismissal, and transfer of the CAE shall be consented by a supermajority (i.e., more 

than two-thirds) of all Directors and also be approved by the competent authority. 

 
CHAPTER SEVEN ACCOUNTING 
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Article 35 

The fiscal year of this Company shall run from January 1 to December 31 of each year. The 

Board shall prepare the following documents and present to a general meeting of shareholders in 

accordance with procedures required by law for ratification: 

1. Operation Reports; 
2. Balance Sheets; and 
3. Proposals for distribution of earnings or replenishment of losses. 

 
Article 36 

If the Company has any earnings at the end of any given fiscal year, the Company shall 

allocate more than zero point 1 per-mille (0.1‰) of the remaining earnings distributable as 

employees’ compensation and not exceeding 1 percent (1%) of the remaining earnings distributable 

as compensation for the Directors. However, the Company’s accumulated losses, if any, shall have 

been covered. 

Compensation for the Directors is paid in cash, whereas compensation for employees may be 

paid in either cash or stock shares of the Company. Employees eligible to receive stock bonus may 

include employees of the Company’s subsidiaries who meet certain criteria set forth by the Board. 

The distribution ratio of compensation for Directors, and the distribution form and ratio of 

employees’ compensation shall be approved by a resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors 

present at a Board meeting with a supermajority attendance by the Directors. 

The calculation basis of compensation for employees and the Directors is the Company’s net 

earnings in the given fiscal year (i.e., pre-tax income taking off compensation distributable for 

employees and the Directors from the balance of the current period) offsetting the Company’s 

accumulated losses. 

 

Article 36-1 

The Company has adopted a residual dividend policy in order to expand its operational scale 

and enhance its profit earning capacity. 

If the Company has any earnings at the end of any given fiscal year, the Company shall use 

the earnings to cover its accumulated losses in previous fiscal years, pay all taxes pursuant to 

 

  

relevant laws, set aside legal reserve(s), and provide or reserve special reserve(s) in accordance 

with relevant laws, and distribute the remaining earnings for accumulated and current dividends 

for Class A preferred shares. And then the balance (hereinafter as annual surplus)  shall be added 

with those undistributed surplus at the beginning of the period as the distributable base. The 

Company shall allocate not less than 30% of annual surplus for the dividends of common shares. 

The Board shall propose a distribution plan and present it to a meeting of shareholders for approval. 

If the amount of the Company’s legal reserve mentioned in the preceding paragraph has 

reached the amount of the Company’s paid-in capital, the Company may be exempted from 

constantly setting aside legal reserve. With respect to the cumulative net amount of other 

deductions from equity in a preceding period(s), the company shall allocate an amount of 

special reserve equal to the amount allocated to undistributed earnings for the preceding period. 

If there remains any insufficiency, allocate it from the amount of the after-tax net profit for the 

period, plus items other than after-tax net profit for the period, that are included in the 

undistributed earnings of the period. 

Given the Company’s plans for its operation, the Company has adopted distributing stock 

dividend while preserving capital needed for the Company as its principal policy of dividend 

distribution. The remainder may be distributed in cash, provided that cash dividend shall not be 

less than ten percent (10%) of the total dividend distributable for that given fiscal year. 

 
CHAPTER EIGHT SUPPLEMENTARY PROVISIONS 

Article 37 

The Company’s organizational rules, business policies, and other rules and guidelines shall 

be separately drafted in accordance with the power and responsibilities prescribed in these Articles 

of Incorporation. 

 
Article 38 

Matters not covered in these Articles of Incorporation shall be governed by the Financial 

Holding Company Act, the Company Act, and other relevant laws and regulations. 

 
Article 39 
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These Articles of Incorporation were adopted on November 19, 2001. Amendments to the 

Articles of Incorporation are as follows: the 1st amendment on June 27th, 2003; the 2nd 

amendment on June 11th, 2004; the 3rd amendment on August 26th, 2005; the 4th amendment on 

June 9th, 2006; the 5th amendment on June 11th, 2007; the 6th amendment on June 6th, 2008; the 

7th amendment on June 19th, 2009; the 8th amendment on December 11th, 2009; the 9th 

amendment on June 18th, 2010; the 10th amendment on June 15th, 2012; the 11th amendment on 

June 12th, 2014; the 12th amendment on June 12th, 2015; the 13th amendment on June 17th, 2016; 

the 14th amendment on July 20th, 2021; and the 15th amendment on May 27th, 2022 ; and the 

16th amendment on May 24th, 2023. 
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These Articles of Incorporation were adopted on November 19, 2001. Amendments to the 

Articles of Incorporation are as follows: the 1st amendment on June 27th, 2003; the 2nd 

amendment on June 11th, 2004; the 3rd amendment on August 26th, 2005; the 4th amendment on 

June 9th, 2006; the 5th amendment on June 11th, 2007; the 6th amendment on June 6th, 2008; the 

7th amendment on June 19th, 2009; the 8th amendment on December 11th, 2009; the 9th 

amendment on June 18th, 2010; the 10th amendment on June 15th, 2012; the 11th amendment on 

June 12th, 2014; the 12th amendment on June 12th, 2015; the 13th amendment on June 17th, 2016; 

the 14th amendment on July 20th, 2021; and the 15th amendment on May 27th, 2022 ; and the 

16th amendment on May 24th, 2023. 
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Release of the Non-Competition Restrictions of Directors by the 2023 
Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting 

  

Directors and party of 
representative 

Names of the other companies Position at the 
other companies 

Hsinex International Corp. eCrowd Media Inc. Director  

Aidatek Electronics, Inc. Director 

 Hsin Yi Recreation Enterprise Co., Ltd. Director 

 Yuen Foong Paper Co., Ltd. Director 

 Hoi Toy&Play Corporation Director 

 Hsin Yi Holdings Co., Ltd. Hsin Yi Holdings 
Co., Ltd.is a 
wholly-owned 
subsidiary of  
Hsinex 
International 
Corp. 
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SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited  

Articles of Incorporation 

 
CHAPTER ONE GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Article 1 
SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited (hereinafter the “Company”) is incorporated 

pursuant to the Financial Holding Company Act, the Company Act, and other laws and regulations. 

 
Article 2 

The (Chinese) name of the Company is “永豐金融控股股份有限公司” (literally, 

Yuen Foong Financial Holdings Company Limited by Shares) and the short form of the name is 
“永豐金控.”  The Company’s English name is “SINOPAC FINANCIAL 

HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED” and the short form of the English name is “SINOPAC 

HOLDINGS.” 

 
Article 3 

The Company is headquartered in Taipei City, Taiwan, R.O.C. The Company may establish 

domestic and overseas branches upon the resolution of its Board of Directors (hereinafter the 

“Board”) and approval by the competent authority. 

 
Article 4 

Public notice and announcement given by the Company shall be handled in accordance with 

the Company Act. 

 

CHAPTER TWO SCOPE OF BUSINESS 

Article 5 

AAttttaacchhmmeenntt  1111  
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SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited  

Articles of Incorporation 

 
CHAPTER ONE GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Article 1 
SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited (hereinafter the “Company”) is incorporated 

pursuant to the Financial Holding Company Act, the Company Act, and other laws and regulations. 

 
Article 2 

The (Chinese) name of the Company is “永豐金融控股股份有限公司” (literally, 

Yuen Foong Financial Holdings Company Limited by Shares) and the short form of the name is 
“永豐金控.”  The Company’s English name is “SINOPAC FINANCIAL 

HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED” and the short form of the English name is “SINOPAC 

HOLDINGS.” 

 
Article 3 

The Company is headquartered in Taipei City, Taiwan, R.O.C. The Company may establish 

domestic and overseas branches upon the resolution of its Board of Directors (hereinafter the 

“Board”) and approval by the competent authority. 

 
Article 4 

Public notice and announcement given by the Company shall be handled in accordance with 

the Company Act. 

 

CHAPTER TWO SCOPE OF BUSINESS 

Article 5 
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The Company is engaged in the business categorized as the H801011 financial holding 

company industry. 

Article 6 

The Company’s scope of business is as follows: 

1. The Company may invest in the following businesses: 

(1) financial holding; 

(2) banking; 

(3) bills finance; 

(4) credit card; 

(5) trust; 

(6) insurance; 

(7) securities; 

(8) futures; 

(9) venture capital; 

(10) foreign financial institutions which have been approved for investment by the competent 
authority; and 

(11) other financial related businesses identified by the competent authority. 

2. Management of those invested businesses mentioned in the preceding subparagraphs; 

3. The Company may apply to the competent authority for approval of its investment in business 

other than those listed in the first subparagraph, but may not participate in the business 

operation of the invested business; and 

4. Other relevant businesses approved by the competent authority. 
 

Article 7 

(Deleted.) 

CHAPTER THREE CAPITAL STOCK 

Article 8 

The total authorized capital of the Company is one hundred eighty billion New Taiwan Dollars 

(NT$180,000,000,000), divided into eighteen billion (18,000,000,000) shares (including seventy 

million (70,000,000) Class A preferred shares) with a par value of Ten New Taiwan Dollars (NT$10) 

each. The Board is authorized to issue the unissued shares in batches. Within the shares stated 

 

  

above, five hundred millions (500,000,000) common shares shall be reserved for the purpose of 

issuance upon exercise of stock warrants, preferred shares with warrants or corporate bonds with 

warrants. In each issue of the Company’s employee stock warrants, the determination of the amount 

of shares for the purpose of issuance upon exercise of employee stock warrants of the Company 

shall follow relevant laws and regulations of competent authority of securities. 

 
Article 8-1 

The rights, obligations, and other important terms of Class A preferred shares issued by the 

Company are as follows: 

1. If the Company has any earnings at the end of any given fiscal year, the Company shall use the 

earnings to cover its accumulated losses in previous fiscal years, pay all taxes pursuant to 

relevant laws, set aside legal reserve(s) and provide or reserve special reserve(s) in accordance 

with relevant laws and these Articles of Incorporation before distributing the remaining earnings 

for accumulated and current dividends for Class A preferred shares. 

2. The calculation of the dividend yield of Class A preferred shares is as follows: (1) within the 

first fifteen years since the issue date of Class A preferred shares, the dividend yield of Class A 

preferred shares for the first calendar year is calculated based on the fixed rate of one-year 

period annuity savings of the “Chung Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd.”(hereinafter “Chunghwa Post”) 

on the Company’s record date for capital increase plus 0.7% per annum, whereas Class A 

preferred shares’ dividend yield of the following year(s) is calculated based on the fixed rate of 

Chunghwa Post’s one-year period annuity savings on the anniversary of the issue date plus 0.7% 

per annum; and (2) starting from the sixteenth anniversary of the issue date of Class A preferred 

shares, the dividend yield of Class A preferred shares for the following year is calculated based 

on the fixed rate of Chunghwa Post’s one-year period annuity savings on the anniversary of the 

issue date plus 1.5% per annum. All payable dividends of Class A preferred  shares  are  

calculated based on the issuing price and are paid annually in cash in one lump sum. Dividends 

of Class A preferred shares may be distributed only after the Company’s shareholders have 

approved the Company’s financial statements in their annual general meetings. Following the 

aforesaid approval, the Board shall set the record date for distribution of the abovementioned 
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The Company is engaged in the business categorized as the H801011 financial holding 

company industry. 

Article 6 

The Company’s scope of business is as follows: 

1. The Company may invest in the following businesses: 

(1) financial holding; 

(2) banking; 

(3) bills finance; 

(4) credit card; 

(5) trust; 

(6) insurance; 

(7) securities; 

(8) futures; 

(9) venture capital; 

(10) foreign financial institutions which have been approved for investment by the competent 
authority; and 

(11) other financial related businesses identified by the competent authority. 

2. Management of those invested businesses mentioned in the preceding subparagraphs; 

3. The Company may apply to the competent authority for approval of its investment in business 

other than those listed in the first subparagraph, but may not participate in the business 

operation of the invested business; and 

4. Other relevant businesses approved by the competent authority. 
 

Article 7 

(Deleted.) 

CHAPTER THREE CAPITAL STOCK 

Article 8 

The total authorized capital of the Company is one hundred eighty billion New Taiwan Dollars 

(NT$180,000,000,000), divided into eighteen billion (18,000,000,000) shares (including seventy 

million (70,000,000) Class A preferred shares) with a par value of Ten New Taiwan Dollars (NT$10) 

each. The Board is authorized to issue the unissued shares in batches. Within the shares stated 

 

  

above, five hundred millions (500,000,000) common shares shall be reserved for the purpose of 

issuance upon exercise of stock warrants, preferred shares with warrants or corporate bonds with 

warrants. In each issue of the Company’s employee stock warrants, the determination of the amount 

of shares for the purpose of issuance upon exercise of employee stock warrants of the Company 

shall follow relevant laws and regulations of competent authority of securities. 

 
Article 8-1 

The rights, obligations, and other important terms of Class A preferred shares issued by the 

Company are as follows: 

1. If the Company has any earnings at the end of any given fiscal year, the Company shall use the 

earnings to cover its accumulated losses in previous fiscal years, pay all taxes pursuant to 

relevant laws, set aside legal reserve(s) and provide or reserve special reserve(s) in accordance 

with relevant laws and these Articles of Incorporation before distributing the remaining earnings 

for accumulated and current dividends for Class A preferred shares. 

2. The calculation of the dividend yield of Class A preferred shares is as follows: (1) within the 

first fifteen years since the issue date of Class A preferred shares, the dividend yield of Class A 

preferred shares for the first calendar year is calculated based on the fixed rate of one-year 

period annuity savings of the “Chung Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd.”(hereinafter “Chunghwa Post”) 

on the Company’s record date for capital increase plus 0.7% per annum, whereas Class A 

preferred shares’ dividend yield of the following year(s) is calculated based on the fixed rate of 

Chunghwa Post’s one-year period annuity savings on the anniversary of the issue date plus 0.7% 

per annum; and (2) starting from the sixteenth anniversary of the issue date of Class A preferred 

shares, the dividend yield of Class A preferred shares for the following year is calculated based 

on the fixed rate of Chunghwa Post’s one-year period annuity savings on the anniversary of the 

issue date plus 1.5% per annum. All payable dividends of Class A preferred  shares  are  

calculated based on the issuing price and are paid annually in cash in one lump sum. Dividends 

of Class A preferred shares may be distributed only after the Company’s shareholders have 

approved the Company’s financial statements in their annual general meetings. Following the 

aforesaid approval, the Board shall set the record date for distribution of the abovementioned 
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dividends. Cash dividends payable for the year of issuance and/or the year of redemption shall 

be prorated according to the ratio of the actual number of days Class A preferred shares remain 

outstanding over the days of the given year. Distribution of cash dividends payable for the year 

of redemption shall be announced after the annual general meeting of the Company’s 

shareholders in the year following the year of redemption. 

3. If, at the end of any given fiscal year, the Company has no earnings or insufficient earnings to 

fully pay off dividends for Class A preferred shares, or suspends distribution of dividends for 

Class A preferred shares because it will cause the Company’s integrated Capital Adequacy 

Ratio to fall below the minimum requirement stipulated by the laws and regulations or the 

competent authorities, the Company shall accumulate the undistributed dividends, together with 

accumulated dividends undistributed in previous years, and distribute them in a fiscal year when 

the Company has generated sufficient earnings. 

4. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company, Class Apreferred 

shareholders shall be given priority to claim on the Company’s residual assets over common 

shareholders. Nonetheless, the amount claimed by Class A preferred shareholders on the basis 

of the abovementioned priority shall not exceed the sum of Class A preferred shares’ issuing 

price plus respective dividends which have been accumulated but undistributed in previous 

years. 

5. Class A preferred shareholders are not entitled to cast votes or any right to vote on election in 

shareholders’ meetings. However, Class A preferred shareholders are eligible to be elected as 

Directors and are entitled to vote in Class A preferred shareholders’ meetings. 

6. Except dividends described in the sub-paragraph 2 of this Article, Class A preferred 

shareholders are not entitled to receive earning distribution or capital surplus distribution (in the 

form of cash or capital reserves being reallocated as capital) for common shares. 

7. When the Company issues new shares to raise capital, Class A preferred shareholders may be 

entitled to preemptive rights on the new shares. 

8. Commencing from the day following a full three calendar years after the issue date of Class A 

preferred shares, each Class A preferred shareholder may at any time, except during the lock-in 

periods described below, submit a request application to the Company to convert a portion or 

 

  

all of the outstanding Class A preferred shares held by the shareholder-applicant on a one for 

one basis into common shares: (1) the period for book closure required under the law; (2) the 

period beginning from 3 business days prior to the date(s) determined by the Board for the 

public announcement of the book closure period for granting dividends gratis, for distribution 

of cash dividend, or for rights issue, until the record date for such right; and (3) any other lock-

in periods prohibiting conversion of shares required by the law. The rights and obligations of 

common shares converted from Class A preferred shares are same as that of the Company’s 

common shares. 

9. Class A preferred shareholders who have converted their shares into common shares prior to 

the ex-rights/ex-dividend base day of any given year are not entitled, with regard to shares which 

have been converted into common shares, for dividends distributed for Class A preferred shares 

for the given year and the years thereafter, but are entitled with priority to receive distribution 

of accumulated dividend, if any, which has not been distributed in previous years, for the given 

year and the years thereafter. Moreover, Class A preferred shareholders who have received 

preferred shares’ dividends distributed for the given year are not eligible, with regard to shares 

which have been converted into common shares, to receive dividends for common shares 

distributed in the same year. 

10. Class A preferred shares are perpetual securities. The Company has the option of using its 

remaining earnings, proceeds from issue of new shares, or any other   ways permitted by the 

laws and regulations, to redeem Class A preferred shares in whole or in part, no earlier than the 

day following the fifteenth anniversary of the issue date, at the price of issue price plus 

undistributed dividends accumulated in previous years and dividends to be distributed for the  

current  year  calculated based on the ratio of the actual number of days Class A preferred 

shares remain outstanding over the days of the given year. The Company shall send a thirty 

(30) days prior written notice to Class A preferred shareholders before the Company redeems 

the preferred shares. The Company’s redemption notice does not deprive Class A preferred 

shareholders of their right to convert their preferred shares into common shares before the 

Company redeems their preferred shares. 

Article 8-2 
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dividends. Cash dividends payable for the year of issuance and/or the year of redemption shall 
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outstanding over the days of the given year. Distribution of cash dividends payable for the year 
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Directors and are entitled to vote in Class A preferred shareholders’ meetings. 
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form of cash or capital reserves being reallocated as capital) for common shares. 
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8. Commencing from the day following a full three calendar years after the issue date of Class A 

preferred shares, each Class A preferred shareholder may at any time, except during the lock-in 
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all of the outstanding Class A preferred shares held by the shareholder-applicant on a one for 

one basis into common shares: (1) the period for book closure required under the law; (2) the 

period beginning from 3 business days prior to the date(s) determined by the Board for the 

public announcement of the book closure period for granting dividends gratis, for distribution 

of cash dividend, or for rights issue, until the record date for such right; and (3) any other lock-

in periods prohibiting conversion of shares required by the law. The rights and obligations of 

common shares converted from Class A preferred shares are same as that of the Company’s 

common shares. 

9. Class A preferred shareholders who have converted their shares into common shares prior to 

the ex-rights/ex-dividend base day of any given year are not entitled, with regard to shares which 

have been converted into common shares, for dividends distributed for Class A preferred shares 

for the given year and the years thereafter, but are entitled with priority to receive distribution 

of accumulated dividend, if any, which has not been distributed in previous years, for the given 

year and the years thereafter. Moreover, Class A preferred shareholders who have received 

preferred shares’ dividends distributed for the given year are not eligible, with regard to shares 

which have been converted into common shares, to receive dividends for common shares 

distributed in the same year. 

10. Class A preferred shares are perpetual securities. The Company has the option of using its 

remaining earnings, proceeds from issue of new shares, or any other   ways permitted by the 

laws and regulations, to redeem Class A preferred shares in whole or in part, no earlier than the 

day following the fifteenth anniversary of the issue date, at the price of issue price plus 

undistributed dividends accumulated in previous years and dividends to be distributed for the  

current  year  calculated based on the ratio of the actual number of days Class A preferred 

shares remain outstanding over the days of the given year. The Company shall send a thirty 

(30) days prior written notice to Class A preferred shareholders before the Company redeems 

the preferred shares. The Company’s redemption notice does not deprive Class A preferred 

shareholders of their right to convert their preferred shares into common shares before the 

Company redeems their preferred shares. 

Article 8-2 
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(Deleted.) 

 
Article 9 

All shares of the Company shall be duly issued as registered shares and shall have been 

signed and sealed by the director representing the Company, and be duly certified by the 

authenticated banks. The Company may opt for not issuing any share certificate for newly issued 

shares, provided that the Company shall register these book-entry securities with centralized 

securities depository enterprises. 

 
Article 10 

Shareholders shall provide their names, address of their residence or dwelling places, and 

seal specimens to the Company for record-keeping purpose. The same instruction shall be applied 

when shareholders change their aforementioned information. Shareholders shall present the same 

seals as kept in the Company’s records when collecting dividends or exercising other rights. 

 
Article 11 

All transfers of the Company’s shares shall be suspended within sixty (60) days prior to the 

commencement of each annual general meeting of shareholders, within thirty (30) days prior to 

the commencement of each extraordinary meeting of shareholders, or within five (5) days prior to 

the record date determined by the Company for distribution of dividends or other benefits. 

 

Article 12 

The Company shall handle its shareholder services in accordance with the Regulations 

Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies. 

 

CHAPTER FOUR SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING 

Article 13 

The Company has two types of shareholders’ meetings, including general meetings and 

 

  

extraordinary meetings of shareholders. Unless otherwise specified by the laws and regulations, all 

shareholders’ meetings shall be convened by the Board in accordance with the laws. General 

meetings of shareholders shall be convened within six (6) months after the end of each fiscal year, 

whereas an extraordinary meeting of shareholders is convened in accordance with the laws when 

necessary. 

 
Article 13-1 

The shareholders' meeting can be held by means of visual communication network or other 

methods promulgated by the central competent authority.  

In case a shareholders' meeting is proceeded via visual communication network, the 

shareholders taking part in such a visual communication meeting shall be deemed to have attended 

the meeting in person. 

For the preceding two paragraphs, the Company shall be subject to prescriptions provided for 

by the competent authority in charge of securities affairs, including the prerequisites, procedures, 

and other compliance matters. 

 
Article 14 

Unless otherwise provided by the laws, resolutions at a shareholders’ meeting shall be adopted 

by a majority of presenting shareholders representing a majority of the total number of issued and 

outstanding shares. Except otherwise provided by the laws and regulations, each shareholder shall 

be entitled to one (1) vote for each share held by such shareholder. 

 
Article 15 

A shareholder who is unable to attend a shareholders’ meeting may duly execute a proxy letter 

printed by the Company expressly stating therein the scope of the power authorized in order to 

appoint a proxy agent to attend the meeting on his behalf. The Regulations Governing the Use of 

Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies shall apply to the use of 

proxies mentioned above. Except for trust business or stock agencies approved by the competent 
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authority, when one person acts as a proxy agent of two or more shareholders, the amount of voting 

rights represented by the proxy agent shall not exceed three percent (3%) of the total number of 

voting rights attached to all issued shares of the Company. Any votes in excess of this three percent 

(3%) threshold shall not be counted. 

 
Article 16 

Representative of institutional shareholders shall not be limited to one person, provided that 

the voting right of such institutional shareholder shall be determined by the aggregate number of 

the shares held by such institutional shareholders. 

When the representatives mentioned in the preceding paragraph have two or more persons, 

they shall exercise their voting rights jointly. 

With respect to the qualifications, scope, methods of exercise, operating procedures and other 

matters for compliance with respect to exercising voting power separately in the preceding 

paragraph, the Company shall follow the relevant laws and regulations prescribed by the competent 

authority in charge of securities affairs. 

 
CHAPTER FIVE DIRECTORS 

Article 17 

The Company shall have a Board comprising seven (7) to eleven (11) members. The number 

of the Directors to be elected within the above range is set by the Board. The Company adopts the 

candidate nomination system for election of the Directors. Directors shall be elected from among 

the list of candidates for Directors by shareholders in their meetings in accordance with the laws. 

Among the number of the Directors prescribed in the preceding paragraph, the number of 

Independent Directors shall be no less than three (3) and also no less than one-fifth of the total 

number of the Directors. With respect to professional qualifications, restrictions on retention of 

shares and concurrent positions held, assessment of independence, method of nomination and 

election, and other relevant requirements to be complied with for Independent Directors, the 

Company shall follow the relevant laws and regulations prescribed by the competent authority in 

charge of securities affairs. 

 

  

 
Article 17-1 

Starting from the fifth (5th) Board, the Company shall establish an Audit Committee 

composing of all Independent Directors and not be fewer than three persons in number. One 

Committee member shall be the convener and at least one Committee member shall specialize in 

accounting or finance. The responsibilities, organizational rules, and other relevant requirements 

to be complied with for the Audit Committee, the Company shall follow the relevant laws and 

regulations, as well as those stipulated in these Articles of Incorporation. 

 
Article 17-2 

The Company shall establish a Compensation Committee in accordance with the laws and 

may establish other various kinds of functional committees as well. The organizational rules for 

each committee shall be formulated and approved by the Board. 
 

Article 18 

The percentage of all outstanding shares retained by all Directors combined shall not be less 

than the specific percentage required by the competent authority in charge of securities affairs. 

 
Article 19 

All Directors serve a three-year term and may be re-elected. If new Directors have not been 

promptly elected upon expiration of the term of current Directors, the term of current Directors 

shall be extended until new Directors are elected and take office. 

 
Article 20 

The Chairperson of the Company shall be elected from among the Directors and by a majority 

vote of the Directors present at a Board meeting attended by at least two-thirds (2/3) of the 

Directors. When necessary, the Company may have a Deputy Chairperson elected likewise. 
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Article 21 

The Chairperson shall be the convener of shareholders’ meetings and Board meetings, and the 

official representative of the Company. In the event the Chairperson is absent or unable to perform 

his duties for cause, the Deputy Chairperson, if any, shall act on behalf of the Chairperson. If there 

is no Deputy Chairperson or if the Deputy Chairperson is absent or unable to perform his duties 

for cause, the Chairperson shall designate a Director to act on his behalf.  In the absence of the 

aforementioned designation, the Directors may elect one Director from among all of them to act 

on behalf of the Chairperson. 

 
Article 22 

Unless otherwise stipulated by the laws and regulations, Board meetings shall be convened 

by the Chairperson. Moreover, unless otherwise stipulated by the laws or these Articles of 

Incorporation, resolutions of the Board shall be adopted by a majority of the Directors present at a 

Board meeting with a majority attendance by the Directors. 

Directors shall personally attend Board meetings. In the event that a Director is unable to 

attend a Board meeting for cause, the Director may duly execute a proxy letter indicating the scope 

of authorization as stated in the reasons for calling a Board meeting in order to appoint another 

Director as a proxy agent to attend Board meeting on his behalf. Nevertheless, each   

aforementioned Director-proxy agent may be appointed by only one other Director. 

 
Article 23 

The powers and duties of the Board are as follows: 

1. Review and approval of the Company’s business and financial policies; 

2. Approval of the Company’s budget and proposing final account results; 

3. Proposing amendments to the Articles of Incorporation; 

4. Review and approval of the Company’s organizational rules; 

5. Review and approval of the Company’s policies and guidelines of corporate governance; 

6. Review and approval of the Company’s major rules; 

7. Proposing the Company’s capital increase and approval of the issuance of the Company’s 
shares; 

 

  

8. Proposing the distribution plans for earnings; 

9. Resolution on the issuance of the Company’s corporate bonds; 

10. Resolution on plans for redeeming shares of the Company; 

11. Approval of appointment and dismissal of the Company’s officers and other employees with 
equivalent position levels, and their respective compensation; 

12. Approval of or proposing the acquisition or disposition of assets; 

13. Approval of and editing/drafting important contracts to be entered with third parties; 

14. Approval of the appointment, dismissal, and compensation of the certified public accountants 
auditing and certifying financial statements; 

15. Appointing Directors and Supervisors of subsidiaries owned by the Company; 

16. Approval of compensation guidelines for traveling allowance and attendance fees for the 
Directors and consultants; 

17. Approval of the distribution ratio of compensation for the Directors; 

18. Approval of the distribution form and ratio of compensation for employees; and 

19. Other powers and duties vested in the Board pursuant to the laws and regulations, or 
authorized by the meetings of shareholders. 

 
Article 24 

(Deleted.) 
 

Article 25 

(Deleted.) 

 

Article 26 

Officers of the Company, or directors, supervisors, or officers of the Company’s subsidiaries 

may be invited by the Board to attend Board meetings, but are not entitled to any right to vote. 

 
Article 27 

(Deleted.) 

 
Article 28 
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The Directors of the Company may concurrently be the Directors and 

Supervisors of the Company’s subsidiaries. 

 
Article 28-1 

Compensation for the Chairperson, the Deputy Chairperson, and the Directors is authorized 

and determined by the Board in light of the compensation standard in the industry. 

 

CHAPTER SIX MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

Article 29 

The Company shall have one President. The appointment, dismissal, and compensation of the 

President shall be proposed by the Chairperson to the Board, and approved by a resolution adopted 

by a majority of the Directors present at a Board meeting with a majority attendance by the 

Directors. 

 
Article 30 

The following matters shall be presented by the President to the Board for approval or proposed 

by the Board to a shareholders’ meeting for resolution and implementation: 

1. Business plans; 
2. Various major rules; 
3. Establishment, change, and revocation of the Company’ various divisions; 
4. Establishing various committees, and proposing various business guidelines and policies of the 

Company; 
5. Rental, purchase, sale or construction of real estate for the Company’s own use; 
6. Preparation of budgets and presentation of final accounts; 
7. Execution of important contracts; and 
8. Other matters required to be presented to the Board or presented by the Board to a 

shareholders’ meeting for resolution or review. 
 

Article 31 

The following matters shall be decided and executed by the President, or executed by 

 

  

subordinate employees designated by the President: 

1. Management of the Company’s business according to the business plans and policies 

approved by the Board, and execution of documents necessary for the Company’s day-

to-day business operation; 

2. Enactment of rules of lesser significance; 

3. Handling matters designated by the Board and matters mandated by law; 

4. Supervising and instructing subordinate employees to carry out their assigned duties; 

5. Enforcement of the budget plans; and 

6. Handling other matters authorized by the Board. 

 

Article 32 

In the event that the President is unable to perform his duties for cause, the Chairperson shall 

appoint one of the Executive Vice Presidents, whose appointment to be approved by the Board, to 

act on behalf of the President. 

 
Article 33 

The Company shall have Executive Vice Presidents, Senior Vice Presidents, Assistant Vice   

Presidents, and a number of staff members of equivalent rankings. The appointment, dismissal, and 

compensation of these managerial personnel shall be presented by the President to the Board and 

approved by a resolution adopted by majority of the Board present at a Board meeting with a 

majority attendance by the Directors. The appointment, dismissal, and compensation of other staff 

members shall be approved by the President. 

 
Article 34 

The Company shall have one Chief Audit Executive (hereinafter the “CAE”) supervising the 

Company’s internal audit activities in accordance with the resolutions of the Board. The 

appointment, dismissal, and transfer of the CAE shall be consented by a supermajority (i.e., more 

than two-thirds) of all Directors and also be approved by the competent authority. 
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CHAPTER SEVEN ACCOUNTING 

 
Article 35 

The fiscal year of this Company shall run from January 1 to December 31 of each year. The 

Board shall prepare the following documents and present to a general meeting of shareholders in 

accordance with procedures required by law for ratification: 

1. Operation Reports; 
2. Balance Sheets; and 
3. Proposals for distribution of earnings or replenishment of losses. 

 
Article 36 

If the Company has any earnings at the end of any given fiscal year, the Company shall 

allocate more than zero point 1 per-mille (0.1‰) of the remaining earnings distributable as 

employees’ compensation and not exceeding 1 percent (1%) of the remaining earnings distributable 

as compensation for the Directors. However, the Company’s accumulated losses, if any, shall have 

been covered. 

Compensation for the Directors is paid in cash, whereas compensation for employees may be 

paid in either cash or stock shares of the Company. Employees eligible to receive stock bonus may 

include employees of the Company’s subsidiaries who meet certain criteria set forth by the Board. 

The distribution ratio of compensation for Directors, and the distribution form and ratio of 

employees’ compensation shall be approved by a resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors 

present at a Board meeting with a supermajority attendance by the Directors. 

The calculation basis of compensation for employees and the Directors is the Company’s net 

earnings in the given fiscal year (i.e., pre-tax income taking off compensation distributable for 

employees and the Directors from the balance of the current period) offsetting the Company’s 

accumulated losses. 

 

Article 36-1 

The Company has adopted a residual dividend policy in order to expand its operational scale 

and enhance its profit earning capacity. 

 

  

If the Company has any earnings at the end of any given fiscal year, the Company shall use 

the earnings to cover its accumulated losses in previous fiscal years, pay all taxes pursuant to 

relevant laws, set aside legal reserve(s), and provide or reserve special reserve(s) in accordance 

with relevant laws, and distribute the remaining earnings for accumulated and current dividends 

for Class A preferred shares. And then the balance (hereinafter as annual surplus)  shall be added 

with those undistributed surplus at the beginning of the period as the distributable base. The 

Company shall allocate not less than 30% of annual surplus for the dividends of common shares. 

The Board shall propose a distribution plan and present it to a meeting of shareholders for approval. 

If the amount of the Company’s legal reserve mentioned in the preceding paragraph has 

reached the amount of the Company’s paid-in capital, the Company may be exempted from 

constantly setting aside legal reserve. With respect to the cumulative net amount of other 

deductions from equity in a preceding period(s), the company shall allocate an amount of 

special reserve equal to the amount allocated to undistributed earnings for the preceding period. 

If there remains any insufficiency, allocate it from the amount of the after-tax net profit for the 

period, plus items other than after-tax net profit for the period, that are included in the 

undistributed earnings of the period. 

Given the Company’s plans for its operation, the Company has adopted distributing stock 

dividend while preserving capital needed for the Company as its principal policy of dividend 

distribution. The remainder may be distributed in cash, provided that cash dividend shall not be 

less than ten percent (10%) of the total dividend distributable for that given fiscal year. 

 
CHAPTER EIGHT SUPPLEMENTARY PROVISIONS 

Article 37 

The Company’s organizational rules, business policies, and other rules and guidelines shall 

be separately drafted in accordance with the power and responsibilities prescribed in these Articles 

of Incorporation. 

 
Article 38 

Matters not covered in these Articles of Incorporation shall be governed by the Financial 

Holding Company Act, the Company Act, and other relevant laws and regulations. 
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relevant laws, set aside legal reserve(s), and provide or reserve special reserve(s) in accordance 

with relevant laws, and distribute the remaining earnings for accumulated and current dividends 

for Class A preferred shares. And then the balance (hereinafter as annual surplus)  shall be added 

with those undistributed surplus at the beginning of the period as the distributable base. The 

Company shall allocate not less than 30% of annual surplus for the dividends of common shares. 

The Board shall propose a distribution plan and present it to a meeting of shareholders for approval. 

If the amount of the Company’s legal reserve mentioned in the preceding paragraph has 
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constantly setting aside legal reserve. With respect to the cumulative net amount of other 
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CHAPTER EIGHT SUPPLEMENTARY PROVISIONS 

Article 37 

The Company’s organizational rules, business policies, and other rules and guidelines shall 

be separately drafted in accordance with the power and responsibilities prescribed in these Articles 

of Incorporation. 

 
Article 38 

Matters not covered in these Articles of Incorporation shall be governed by the Financial 

Holding Company Act, the Company Act, and other relevant laws and regulations. 
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Article 39 

These Articles of Incorporation were adopted on November 19, 2001. Amendments to the 

Articles of Incorporation are as follows: the 1st amendment on June 27th, 2003; the 2nd 

amendment on June 11th, 2004; the 3rd amendment on August 26th, 2005; the 4th amendment on 

June 9th, 2006; the 5th amendment on June 11th, 2007; the 6th amendment on June 6th, 2008; the 

7th amendment on June 19th, 2009; the 8th amendment on December 11th, 2009; the 9th 

amendment on June 18th, 2010; the 10th amendment on June 15th, 2012; the 11th amendment on 

June 12th, 2014; the 12th amendment on June 12th, 2015; the 13th amendment on June 17th, 2016; 

the 14th amendment on July 20th, 2021; and the 15th amendment on May 27th, 2022. 

 
 

SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited 
Rules of Procedure for Shareholders’ Meetings 

 
Article 1 

The rules of procedures for shareholders’ meetings of SinoPac Financial Holdings Company 
Limited (hereinafter the “Company”), except as otherwise provided by law, regulation, or the 
articles of incorporation, shall be as provided in these Rules of Procedure for Shareholders’ 
Meetings (hereinafter the “Rules”). 
 
Article 2 

Call notices for general shareholders’ meetings of this Company shall be given to shareholders 
at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of the meetings; Call notices for extraordinary shareholders’ 
meetings of this Company shall be given to shareholders at least fifteen (15) days prior to the date 
of the meetings. 
 
Article 3 

When convening a shareholders’ meeting, this Company shall furnish the attending 
shareholders with an attendance book to sign, or attending shareholders may hand in a sign-in card 
in lieu of signing in.  The number of shares in attendance shall be calculated according to the 
shares indicated by the attendance book and sign-in cards handed in plus number of shares whose 
voting rights are exercised by correspondence or electronically. 
 
Article 4 

Attendance and voting at shareholders’ meetings shall be calculated based on numbers of 
shares. 
 
Article 5 

The venue for a shareholders’ meeting shall be the premises of this Company, or a place easily 
accessible to shareholders and suitable for a shareholders’ meeting.  The meeting may begin no 
earlier than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. 
 
Article 6 

If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the Board of Directors (hereinafter the “Board”), the 
meeting shall be chaired by the Chairperson of the Board (hereinafter the “Chairperson”).  When 
the Chairperson is on leave or unable to perform his duties for cause, the Deputy Chairperson of the 
Board (hereinafter the “Deputy Chairperson”) shall chair the meeting on behalf of the Chairperson.  
If there is no Deputy Chairperson or the Deputy Chairperson is on leave or unable to perform his 
duties for cause, the Chairperson shall appoint one of the Directors to chair the meeting on behalf of 
the Chairperson.  Where the Chairperson des not appoint anyone to act on his behalf, the Directors 

AAttttaacchhmmeenntt  1122  
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shall elect one person from among themselves to chair the meeting on behalf of the Chairperson. 
If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by a party with power to convene but other than the 

Board, the convening party shall chair the meeting.  When there are two or more such convening 
parties, they shall mutually select one meeting chair from among themselves. 

Election or dismissal of directors, amendments to the articles of incorporation, reduction of 
capital, application for the approval of ceasing its status as a public company, approval of 
competing with the company by directors, surplus profit distributed in the form of new shares, 
reserve distributed in the form of new shares, the dissolution, merger, or demerger of the 
corporation, or any matter under Article 185, paragraph 1 of the Company Act, Articles 26-1 and 
43-6 of the Securities and Exchange Act, Articles 56-1 and 60-2 of the Regulations Governing the 
Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers shall be set out and the essential contents 
explained in the notice of the reasons for convening the shareholders meeting. None of the above 
matters may be raised by an extraordinary motion. 

Where re-election of all directors as well as their inauguration date is stated in the notice of the 
reasons for convening the shareholders meeting, after the completion of the re-election in said 
meeting such inauguration date may not be altered by any extraordinary motion or otherwise in the 
same meeting. 
 
Article 7 

This Company may appoint attorneys, certified public accountants, or related persons retained 
by it to attend a shareholders’ meeting in a non-voting capacity. 

Staff handling administrative affairs of a shareholders’ meeting shall wear identification cards 
or arm bands. 
 
Article 8 

This Company shall record the entire proceedings of shareholders’ meeting by video or audio, 
and the recorded materials shall be retained for at least one year. 
 
Article 9 

The chair shall call the meeting to order at the appointed meeting time, and disclose the 
number of shares without voting rights and  the attendance of shareholders simultaneously.  
However, when the attending shareholders do not represent a majority of the total number of issued 
shares, the chair may announce a postponement, provided that no more than two such 
postponements, for a combined total of no more than 1 hour, may be made.  If the quorum is not 
met after two postponements but the attending shareholders represent one third or more of the total 
number of issued shares, a tentative resolution may be adopted pursuant to Article 175, paragraph 1 
of the Company Act. 

When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the attending shareholders represent a majority of 
the total number of issued shares, the chair may resubmit the tentative resolution for a vote by the 

shareholders’ meeting pursuant to Article 174 of the Company Act. 
 
Article 10 

If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the Board, the meeting agenda shall be set by the 
Board. Votes shall be cast on each separate proposal in the agenda (including extraordinary motions 
and amendments to the original proposals set out in the agenda). The meeting shall proceed in the 
order set by the agenda, which may not be changed without a resolution of the shareholders’ 
meeting. 

The provisions of the preceding paragraph apply mutatis mutandis to a shareholders’ meeting 
convened by any parties, other than the Board, with the power to convene. 

Before the completion of discussion of all proposals/items on the meeting agenda (including 
extraordinary motions), set forth in accordance with the two preceding paragraphs, the chair shall 
not announce the adjournment of the meeting without a resolution of adjournment is adopted by the 
shareholders’ meeting. 

Shareholders shall not elect a new meeting chair and continue holding the shareholders’ 
meeting at the same venue or elsewhere after the meeting is adjourned. 
 
Article 11 

Before speaking, an attending shareholder must specify on a speaker’s slip the subject of the 
speech, his/her shareholder account number (or attendance card number), and account name.  The 
order in which shareholders speak will be set by the chair. 

A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a speaker’s slip but does not actually speak 
shall be deemed to have not spoken.  When the content of the speech does not correspond to the 
subject given on the speaker’s slip, the spoken content shall prevail. 

When an attending shareholder is speaking, other shareholders may not speak or interrupt 
unless they have sought and obtained the consent of the chair and the shareholder that has the floor; 
the chair shall stop any violation. 
 
Article 12 

Except with the consent of the chair, a shareholder may not speak more than twice on the same 
proposal, and a single speech may not exceed 5 minutes.  

If a shareholder’s speech violates the rule specified in the preceding paragraph or exceeds the 
scope of the agenda items, the chair may terminate the shareholder’s speech. 
 
Article 13 

When a juristic person is appointed to attend a shareholders’ meeting as proxy, the juristic 
person may designate only one person to represent it in the meeting. 

When a juristic person shareholder appoints two or more representatives to attend a 
shareholders’ meeting, only one of the representatives so appointed may speak on the same 
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proposal. 
 
Article 14 

After an attending shareholder has spoken, the chair may respond in person or direct relevant 
personnel to respond. 
 
Article 15 

When the chair is of the opinion that a proposal has been discussed sufficiently and is ready to 
put for a vote, the chair may announce the discussion closed and call for a vote, and schedule 
sufficient time for voting. 
 
Article 16 

Vote monitoring and counting personnel for the voting on a proposal shall be appointed by the 
chair, provided that all monitoring personnel shall be shareholders of this Company.  The results of 
the voting shall be announced on-site at the meeting and be recorded accordingly. 
 
Article 17 

When a meeting is in progress, the chair may, at his discretion, set time for intermission and 
announce a break based on time considerations.  When shareholders could not finish their 
discussion on all proposals in one meeting, shareholders may adopt a resolution to resume the 
meeting within the next five days without further notice or public announcement. 
 
Article 18 

A shareholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share held, except when the shares are 
issued with certain restrictions or are deemed non-voting shares under Article 179, paragraph 2 of 
the Company Act. 

With respect to resolutions of shareholders’ meetings, the number of shares held by 
shareholders with no voting rights shall not be calculated as part of the total number of issued 
shares. 

With the exception of a trust enterprise or a shareholder services agent approved by the 
competent securities authority, when one person is concurrently appointed as proxy by two or more 
shareholders, the voting rights represented by that proxy may not exceed three percent (3%) of the 
voting rights represented by the total number of issued shares.  If that percentage is exceeded, the 
voting rights in excess of that percentage shall not be included in the calculation. 

When a shareholder is an interested party in relation to an agenda item, and there is the 
likelihood that such a relationship would prejudice the interests of this Corporation, that shareholder 
may not vote on that item, and may not exercise voting rights as proxy for any other shareholder. 

The number of shares for which voting rights may not be exercised under the preceding 
paragraph shall not be calculated as part of the voting rights represented by attending shareholders. 

 
Article 18-1 

When this Company holds a shareholders’meeting, it shall adopt exercise voting rights by 
electronic means and may adopt exercise of voting rights by correspondence.  When voting rights 
are exercised by correspondence or electronic means, the method of exercise shall be specified in 
the shareholders’ meeting notice.  A shareholder exercising voting rights by correspondence or 
electronic means will be deemed to have attended the meeting in person, but to have waived his 
rights with respect to the extraordinary motions and amendments to original proposals of that 
meeting. It is therefore advisable that the Company should avoid the submission of extraordinary 
motions and amendment to original proposals. 

A shareholder intending to exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic means under 
the preceding paragraph shall deliver a written declaration of intent to this Company before 2 days 
before the date of the shareholders’ meeting.  When duplicate declarations of intent are delivered, 
the one received earliest shall prevail, except when a declaration is made to cancel the earlier 
declaration of intent. 

After a shareholder has exercised voting rights by correspondence or electronic means, in the 
event the shareholder intends to attend the shareholders’ meeting in person, a written declaration of 
intent to retract the voting rights already exercised under the preceding paragraph shall be made 
known to this Company, by the same means by which the voting rights were exercised, before 2 
business days before the date of the shareholders’ meeting.  If the notice of retraction is submitted 
after that time, the voting rights already exercised by correspondence or electronic means shall 
prevail.  When a shareholder has exercised voting rights both by correspondence or electronic 
means and by appointing a proxy to attend a shareholders’ meeting, the voting rights exercised by 
the proxy in the meeting shall prevail. 

Except as otherwise provided in the Company Act and in this Company’s Articles of 
Incorporation, the passage of a proposal shall require an affirmative vote of a majority of the voting 
rights represented by the attending shareholders.  At the time of a vote, for each proposal, the chair 
or a person designated by the chair shall first announce the total number of voting rights represented 
by the attending shareholders, followed by a poll of the shareholders.  After the conclusion of the 
meeting, on the same day it is held, the results for each proposal, based on the numbers of votes for 
and against and the number of abstentions, shall be entered into the Market Observation Post 
System (hereinafter the “MOPS”). 
 
Article 19 

Proposals submitted by shareholders shall not be in violation of the Financial Holding 
Company Act, the Company Act, or any other relevant laws and regulations. 

A shareholder holding one percent or more of the total number of issued shares may submit to 
this Corporation a proposal for discussion at a regular shareholders meeting. The number of items 
so proposed is limited to one only, and no proposal containing more than one item will be included 
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in the meeting agenda. When the circumstances of any subparagraph of Article 172-1, paragraph 4 
of the Company Act apply to a proposal put forward by a shareholder, the board of directors may 
exclude it from the agenda. A shareholder may propose a recommendation for urging the 
corporation to promote public interests or fulfill its social responsibilities, provided procedurally the 
number of items so proposed is limited only to one in accordance with Article 172-1 of the 
Company Act, and no proposal containing more than one item will be included in the meeting 
agenda. 

When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the chair shall present the 
amended or alternative proposal together with the original proposal and decide the order in which 
they will be put to a vote. When any one among them is passed, the other proposals will then be 
deemed rejected, and no further voting shall be required. 

There shall be no discussion or resolution on any matters that is not a proposal submitted to the 
shareholders’ meetings. 
 
Article 20 

Business operations of the Company shall be executed pursuant to the resolutions to be 
adopted by the Board, except for the matters the execution of which shall be effected pursuant the 
resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting as required by the laws, regulations, or the Company’s 
Articles of Incorporation. 
 
Article 21 

Matters relating to the resolutions of a shareholders’ meeting shall be recorded in the meeting 
minutes.  The meeting minutes shall be signed or sealed by the chair of the meeting and a copy 
distributed to each shareholder within 20 days after the conclusion of the meeting.  The meeting 
minutes may be produced and distributed in electronic form. 

This Company may distribute the meeting minutes of the preceding paragraph by means of a 
public announcement made through the MOPS. 

The meeting minutes shall accurately record the year, month, day, and place of the meeting, 
the chair’s full name, the methods by which resolutions were adopted, and a summary of the 
deliberations and their voting results (including the number of voting rights), and disclose the 
number of voting rights of each candidate(including unelected candidates) in the event of an 
election of directors ,and shall be retained for the duration of the existence of this Company. 
 
Article 22 

The chair may direct proctors (or security personnel) to help maintain order at the meeting 
place.  When proctors (or security personnel) are helping maintain order at the meeting place, they 
shall wear an armband bearing the word “Proctor.” 
 
Article 23 

The Company shall follow the “Guidelines for Online Filing of Public Information by Public 
Companies” established by the competent authority and act accordingly when dealing with 
shareholders’ meetings information required to be announced to the public. 

When dealing with the shareholders’ meetings resolutions required to be filed or announced to 
the public according to the regulations of the competent authority, the Company shall act in 
accordance with those regulations.  The Company shall also publish the meeting minutes of 
shareholders’ meetings on its website. 
 
Article 24 

These Rules and any amendments hereto, shall be implemented after adoption by shareholders’ 
meetings. 
 
Article 25 

These Rules were adopted on November 19, 2001. Amendments to these Rules are as follows: 
the 1st amendment on June 27th, 2003; the 2nd amendment on June 15th, 2012; the 3rd amendment 
on June 12th, 2014; and the 4th amendment on May 28th,2021. 
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exclude it from the agenda. A shareholder may propose a recommendation for urging the 
corporation to promote public interests or fulfill its social responsibilities, provided procedurally the 
number of items so proposed is limited only to one in accordance with Article 172-1 of the 
Company Act, and no proposal containing more than one item will be included in the meeting 
agenda. 

When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the chair shall present the 
amended or alternative proposal together with the original proposal and decide the order in which 
they will be put to a vote. When any one among them is passed, the other proposals will then be 
deemed rejected, and no further voting shall be required. 

There shall be no discussion or resolution on any matters that is not a proposal submitted to the 
shareholders’ meetings. 
 
Article 20 

Business operations of the Company shall be executed pursuant to the resolutions to be 
adopted by the Board, except for the matters the execution of which shall be effected pursuant the 
resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting as required by the laws, regulations, or the Company’s 
Articles of Incorporation. 
 
Article 21 

Matters relating to the resolutions of a shareholders’ meeting shall be recorded in the meeting 
minutes.  The meeting minutes shall be signed or sealed by the chair of the meeting and a copy 
distributed to each shareholder within 20 days after the conclusion of the meeting.  The meeting 
minutes may be produced and distributed in electronic form. 

This Company may distribute the meeting minutes of the preceding paragraph by means of a 
public announcement made through the MOPS. 

The meeting minutes shall accurately record the year, month, day, and place of the meeting, 
the chair’s full name, the methods by which resolutions were adopted, and a summary of the 
deliberations and their voting results (including the number of voting rights), and disclose the 
number of voting rights of each candidate(including unelected candidates) in the event of an 
election of directors ,and shall be retained for the duration of the existence of this Company. 
 
Article 22 

The chair may direct proctors (or security personnel) to help maintain order at the meeting 
place.  When proctors (or security personnel) are helping maintain order at the meeting place, they 
shall wear an armband bearing the word “Proctor.” 
 
Article 23 

The Company shall follow the “Guidelines for Online Filing of Public Information by Public 
Companies” established by the competent authority and act accordingly when dealing with 
shareholders’ meetings information required to be announced to the public. 

When dealing with the shareholders’ meetings resolutions required to be filed or announced to 
the public according to the regulations of the competent authority, the Company shall act in 
accordance with those regulations.  The Company shall also publish the meeting minutes of 
shareholders’ meetings on its website. 
 
Article 24 

These Rules and any amendments hereto, shall be implemented after adoption by shareholders’ 
meetings. 
 
Article 25 

These Rules were adopted on November 19, 2001. Amendments to these Rules are as follows: 
the 1st amendment on June 27th, 2003; the 2nd amendment on June 15th, 2012; the 3rd amendment 
on June 12th, 2014; and the 4th amendment on May 28th,2021. 
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SINOPAC FINANCIAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED 
Shareholding of Directors 

 
Book closure date: Mar. 26, 2023 

Position Name Shareholding 
(shares) Percentage 

Chairman 
Shi-kuan CHEN 
(Representative of Hsinex International Corp.) 

192,505,284 1.59% 

Independent 
Director 

Chi SCHIVE 0 - 

Independent 
Director 

James J. SHEU 0 - 

Independent 
Director 

Wei-ta PAN 0 - 

Director 
Stanley CHU 
(Representative of Hsinex International Corp.) 

192,505,284 1.59% 

Director 
Chi-hsing YEH  
(Representative of Xing Yuan Co., Ltd.) 

151,310,150 1.25% 

Director 
Wei-thyr TSAO 
(Representative of Xing Yuan Co., Ltd.) 

151,310,150 1.25% 

Number of the shares held by all directors: 343,815,434shares (2.84%) 
Minimum number of directors’ shareholding required by the FSC: 160,000,000 shares  

   Note: As the Company has established the Audit Committee, the minimum shareholding 
        requirements for supervisors shall not apply. 
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